Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Health, Schools and Care Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Thursday, 25th November, 2021
6.00 pm.
Training and Conference Suite, First Floor,
Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Minutes

4-6

To consider the Minutes of the Meeting of Health, Schools and Care
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 9th September 2021.
4

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5

Borough Safeguarding Children Partnership And Rochdale
Borough Safeguarding Adults Board - Annual Report 2020/2021

7 - 27

To receive the Borough’s Safeguarding Annual Reports for 2020/2021.
6

Your Trust
Presentation outlining performance, events and activities relating to
Your Trust (formerly Link4Life), by the Trust’s Chief Executive and

28 - 72

Director of Finance
7

Adult Social Care Making Experiences Count Policy Review

73 - 93

The Committee to scrutinise the updated “Making Experiences Count Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health” policy in order to
improve the customer experience
8

Need for Primary School Places 2022 - 2025

94 - 111

To scrutinise a report that details the capacity of school places in the
primary school sector across the borough.
9

Secondary School Places 2022 - 2025

112 - 118

To scrutinise a report that details the capacity of school places in the
secondary school sector across the borough.
10

Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2021-22:
Quarter 2 Performance Update
Quarter Two Performance reports (July – September 2021) in respect
of Children’s Services, Adult Care and Public Health.

119 - 155

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor Patricia Dale
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor Ray Dutton (Chair)
Councillor Janet Emsley
Councillor Iram Faisal
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Kieran Heakin
John Mcgrath (Co-opted member)
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Patricia Sullivan (Vice Chair)
For more information about this meeting, please contact:Peter Thompson
Committee Services
Rochdale Borough Council
Number One Riverside
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Telephone – 01706 924715
E-mail – peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

Agenda
ItemPack
3
Public
Document
HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 9th September 2021
PRESENT: Councillor Dutton (in the Chair); Councilllors Davidson, Emsley,
Iram Faisal, Hartley, Mir, Sheerin and Sullivan.
OFFICERS: C. Richardson (Director of Strategic Commissioning/DASS),
T. Harrison (Assistant Director - Commissioning (Prevention and Adult Social
Care), J. Hassall (Assistant Director Children's Social Care) and P. Thompson
(Resources Directorate).
8

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dale, Gartside and
Heakin and from Mr J. McGrath (Co-opted Member).

9

MINUTES
Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Health, Schools and Care Overview
and Scrutiny Committee, held 21st February 2021, be approved as a correct
record.

10

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interests.

11

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
There was no urgent business for the Committee to consider.

12

3RD & 4TH QUARTER SOCIAL CARE COMPLAINTS
The Directors of Children’s Services and Adult Services presented a report
that provided Members with a summary of Adult and Children’s Social Care
complaints received during the third and fourth quarters of 2020/2021.
Social care complaints were subject to a statutory reporting framework which
are scrutinised by the Care Quality Commission. The Council’s Customer
Feedback Team extracted and reported on the information recorded for social
care services during the study period, including the number of complaints
received at each stage of the process, the numbers of complaints that are
investigated and responded to within the permitted timescale and the numbers
that were upheld.
Resolved:
That the report be noted.

13

ADULT, CHILDREN & PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE PLANS 2021-22:
QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
The Committee scrutinised a joint report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s
Services and Education/Cabinet Member for Adult Care and

Page 4

Wellbeing/Director of Children’s Services/Director of Commissioning/Director
of Public Health, which set out progress towards achievement of the targets
contained in the Adult Care Directorate Plan 2021/2022, Children’s Services
Directorate Plan 2021/2022 and Public Health Directorate Plan 2021/2022.
In Adult Care Services 75% (9) of the actions included in the 2021/2022
Directorate Plan were ongoing. 25% (3) actions were now complete. The
chart, detailed in the report, showed the overall performance of the Directorate
in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 1 (30th June 2021).
In Children’s Services 88% (14) of the actions included in the 2021/2022
Directorate Plan were ongoing. One action was not fully complete and the
action due date had since passed; a further action had also been completed.
The chart, detailed in the report, showed the overall performance of the
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 1 (30th June
2021).
In the Public Health Service 80% (12) of the actions included in the 2021/2022
Directorate Plan were ongoing. 20% (3) actions were not fully completed and
the action due date had since passed. The chart, detailed in the report,
showed the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets
at the end of Quarter 1 (30th June 2021).
Resolved:
That the report be noted.
14

ESTABLISHMENT OF SHADOW SYSTEM BOARD
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Strategic
Commissioning/DASS, which set the context for the establishment of the
Shadow System Board. It described the subsequent requirements for the
current governance arrangements, including the Strategic Place Board, the
Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body and the Integrated
Commissioning Board and set out a series of recommendations that were
required to establish the Shadow System Board from October 2021.
In November 2020 “Integrating Care: Next steps to building strong and
effective integrated care systems across England” and subsequent White
Paper published in February 2021, set out proposals to: Improve population
health and healthcare; Tackle unequal outcomes and access; Enhance
productivity and value for money; and help to support broader social and
economic development
One of the key elements outlined was the “Principle of Subsidiarity” which
described the requirement for more functions and resources to be devolved
from national and regional levels to local systems to ensure that: decisions
were taken closer to communities; here was collaboration between partners in
a place; and that there was collaboration between providers

Page 5

The White Paper was therefore aligned to the Greater Manchester Devolution
agenda and to the local Rochdale Locality ambition for PLACE to have
primacy and to continue to build on the existing integration across the health
and care system, through the further development of the Local Care
Organisation.
In line with further guidance and working across Greater Manchester, the
North East Sector and our Rochdale system the Rochdale Locality Construct
has been developed with the following three key elements. Firstly there was
the System Board: which would be responsible for setting the strategic
direction for the locality and the board this paper seeks to establish in shadow
form. Secondly the Local Care Organisation Board: this was already
established bringing together provider and commissioner partners from across
health and care, including the voluntary sector, to deliver services in the best
way to improve outcomes for the population. Thirdly Neighbourhoods:
involving integrating services around local people, creating a system of multiagency professionals from all public services working together. Delivery will
be person-centred and take a proactive and preventative approach,
intervening early and responding to the person in the context of their
community.
Members of the Committee challenged the report robustly seeking clarification
on a number of issues contained therein.
Resolved:
That the proposals contained within the submitted report be welcomed,
endorsed and supported by the Committee.

Page 6

Agenda Item 5

Annual Report 2020-21

Page 7

Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children Partnership

And Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults Board
Annual Report 2020/21

Contents
1. Foreword
2. What do we know about the people of Rochdale borough?
3. Our year in numbers
4. About the Partnership and Board
5. What did we achieve this year?
6. Learning from reviews
7. COVID-19 and the impact on safeguarding
8. Safeguarding Activity
9. Evidence of impact on 2019/20 priorities
10. Learning and Development
11. Strategic Priorities
12. Annual budget
13. Appendices
a) Glossary
b) Governance structure

Page 8

Introduction
The Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children Partnership
and Adults Board wants all people living in Rochdale
borough to lead safer lives.
Our Annual Report this year shows how we came together
during a difficult year under exceptional circumstances, to
continue to do our best to safeguard some of the most
vulnerable people living in the Borough. The COVID-19
pandemic has proved challenging for us all, and I have really
felt the collective energy across all partners to continue to
do our best for the adults, children and young people of
Rochdale.
Throughout the last year Rochdale Borough Safeguarding
Children Partnership and Safeguarding Adults Board have
prioritised the safeguarding and protection of our most
vulnerable children and young people, and adults with care
and support needs, continuing to hold training and learning
opportunities, facilitating learning reviews and obtaining
assurance that the response to safeguarding concerns
remains strong and effective. .
The Board and Partnership met regularly throughout the pandemic and I am grateful to all
members for their continued engagement and commitment whilst also working under extreme
pressure in responding to the extra demands from COVID-19.
Particular thanks needs to go to my key partner colleagues from the Local Authority, GMP and
the Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG. During the first months of the pandemic the key
partners and I met weekly to ensure information was shared regarding the impact of lockdown
on safeguarding. These meetings were invaluable enabling us to reflect on demand, scrutinise
activity and challenge as necessary, and to find our way through the pandemic together.
The year covered by this annual report has been difficult and strange for everyone. I hope the
information contained is informative. I want to thank the business unit for their continued hard
work in supporting the Board and Partnership and on a personal level for supporting me.
I look forward to working alongside all my Rochdale colleagues over the next year as we
emerge from COVID 19 restrictions and continue to work together to do our best to help
safeguard the people of Rochdale.

Amanda Clarke, Independent Chair
Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children Partnership and Rochdale Borough
Safeguarding Adults Board

Page 9

3

What do we know about the people of Rochdale borough?

222,412 people living in the borough
22%
62%
16%

Aged below 15
Aged 16-64
Aged 65+

30% residents live in the 10% most deprived areas nationally
 26.6% children are living in poverty
 8.7% out of work benefits claimants
 In 2019 there were an average of 3 rough sleepers per night


25.8% of residents are Black,
132,078
Emergency hospital admissions in 2019

Asian and Minority Ethnic

132.2 per 10,000 mortality rate under 75 (in 2019)
15.8 rate of alcohol specific mortality (in 2018)
19.9% mental health disorders aged 16-74 (in 2017)

38.1% Childhood obesity in Year 6 children in 2019
66.3% Adult obesity in 2019
In 2019:
 16.3% Incidents of ASB
 28.5% Violent crimes
 11.0% Criminal damage

Page 10

The local Joint Strategic Needs Assessment has not been
updated for 2021. The information provided in this infographic
has been provided by Rochdale Borough Council and is taken
from data sources including the Office of National Statistics,
Public Health England, and Nomis For more information on
data
sources
and
validation
please
contact
RBSB.Admin@Rochdale.gov.uk

4

Our year in numbers

5 received in 2019/20

More Rapid Review
Referrals received
in 2020/21 than
2019/20

6 SAR referrals received in 2020/21

But fewer
Safeguarding Adult
Review referrals

10 Rapid Review Referrals received in 2020/21

12 Safeguarding Adult Review received in 2019/20

We saw a decrease in
training attendance
with a pause in training
courses offered during
the initial months of the
pandemic.
Audit activity during
the year focused on
core safeguarding
activity rather than
specific themes.

614

Delegates attending training

3 Multi-Agency Audits completed

Page 11

5

About the Partnership and Board
The Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children Partnership is the local statutory body
responsible for overseeing the safeguarding activity of children and young people as set out
in Working Together 2018. The Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults Board is the statutory
multi-agency body to oversee, lead, and coordinate the strategic development of adult
safeguarding across the borough. Both the Partnership and Board have a joint Business Unit
to coordinate and facilitate all activity, and a single Independent Chair sits across both bodies.
Working Together 2018 provides a framework of support to enable local organisations and
agencies to work together in a system where children are safeguarded and their welfare is
promoted, partner agencies collaborate, enabling organisations and agencies to challenge
appropriately and hold one another to account. For more information please visit Working
together to safeguard children - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)
The Care Act 2014 sets out a clear legal framework for how local authorities and other parts
of the system should protect adults at risk of abuse or neglect and gives the RBSAB three
core duties to undertake:
1. Develop and publish a strategic plan
2. Publish an Annual Report detailing the effectiveness of our work
3. Commission Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs)
For more information please visit Care Act
2014 (legislation.gov.uk)
RBSCP is made up of the three Strategic
Partners
(Local
Authority,
Clinical
Commissioning Group and Police), as well
as a number of other agencies to ensure all
aspects of safeguarding and community
support are represented. RBSAB is made
up of statutory and non-statutory partners
ensuring that all aspects of adults’ health
and wellbeing are promoted.
Partnership and Board Members are senior
leaders in each organisation with
responsibility for safeguarding. Their role is
to bring their organisation’s children and
adult safeguarding issues to the attention of
the Partnership and Board, promote the
agreed priorities and work to embed
learning throughout their own organisation.

RBSCP member agencies

RBSAB member agencies

Page 12

6

What did we achieve this year?
All RBSCP and RBSAB agencies have continued to develop and improve services for children,
adults and families living in the borough.













Inspection and
accreditation
activity



GMFRS have appointed a new dedicated Lead Officer for safeguarding
GMFRS have 20 DSOs who are able to offer 24/7 advice to all staff
HMR CCG continued with their programme of health provider safeguarding assurance
All GP practices in the borough have reported full compliance against local safeguarding
standards (as set out in RBSCP Section 11 audit)
Advocacy Together ensured Fast Track Advocates were able to visit individuals during
the national lockdown
NPS delivered interventions with a focus on high risk, sex offender and domestic abuse
Greater Manchester Police Child Sexual Exploitation and Child Criminal Exploitation
teams have continued to evolve and respond to the increasing complexities associated
with child exploitation
PCFT safeguarding team recruited a Named Professional for Safeguarding Adults who
will offer training, advice, support and guidance to all PCFT staff
PCFT safeguarding team launched lunch and learn sessions on financial abuse and
adult grooming to embed learning from a Safeguarding Adult Review
RBSAB supported Greater Manchester Police to strengthen governance and reporting
from MAAST meetings
A local seasonal influenza vaccination referral pathway has been developed targeted at
hard to reach patients
Adult Care have refreshed the Market Position Statement, which has identified
increasing complexity of need around dementia, and increased need for specialist
challenging behaviour services for younger adults
Hopwood Hall College have strengthened safeguarding arrangements, introducing a
new Pastoral Welfare and Safeguarding Team. The college also supported learners’
and staff mental health during lockdown.
Hopwood Hall Ofsted inspection – December 2020
 Good – positive feedback around leadership and learning support during
COVID-19
Rochdale and District MIND
 Mind Quality Mark (MQM), which is in place for 3 years
 Renewal of British Association of Counselling and Psychotherapy (BACP)
accreditation and the Disability Confident and Mindful Employer.

Campaigns
RBSCP and RBSAB continued with another positive year of safeguarding campaigns building
on the success and practitioner engagement of previous years. As with much of our work this
year campaigns and events were held virtually, but that did not inhibit engagement or
participation.

Page 13

7

We held our first ever Safeguarding Children
Awareness Week in June 2020 which focused
on sharing information on:




Child neglect awareness
Impact of Domestic Abuse on children &
young people
Baby safer sleep advice

A dedicated website for the week housed information factsheets and resource documents,
and a social media toolkit was created and shared across the Partnership. The Mayor of
Rochdale, Councillor Billy Sheerin shared his support for the campaign.
The second annual Safeguarding Adults Week was held in November 2020 with each day
across the week devoted to a different safeguarding theme. The Joint RBSCP / RBSAB
newsletter was published to coincide with the week, and
factsheets on the themes were compiled for practitioners
and uploaded on to a dedicated webpage.
A total of 69 delegates attended 7 different training
courses across the week, including Self Neglect and
Hoarding, MCA DOLS and Honour Based Violence and
Abuse.
We will continue with the dedicated children and adult
safeguarding weeks next year, ensuring that
information, training and resources provided are linked
to our Strategic Priorities.
In October 2020 we held a launch event for the Keep Baby Safe campaign, which was aimed
at parents and carers of young babies to help them cope with infant crying and to promote
safer sleep advice. The campaign was launched
on 20th October 2020 with 2 interactive virtual
practitioner events, attended by 67 practitioners.
A participant evaluation survey was completed
by 37 participants who indicated they had
stronger awareness of the issues, and increased
confidence in speaking to parents and carers
about safe sleep advice.
Our commitment to promoting key safeguarding messages for children and adults will remain
one of our priorities for next year, ensuring that learning from reviews and other safeguarding
activity shapes our communications and campaigns for professionals and public alike.

Page 14

8

Learning from safeguarding reviews
This year the RBSCP received 10 Rapid Review referrals, with 5 progressing to a Rapid
Review. This is an increase from 2019/20 when 3 Rapid Reviews were held. We
commissioned 3 Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews during the year, and these are
currently progressing through our local processes.
The main themes identified from these cases were:






Child Neglect
Sexual exploitation
Non-accidental injuries
Safe sleep
Physical assault

Rapid Review main category
Neglect
Abusive Head Trauma
Sexual abuse

Count
1
2
2

One Rapid Review was held for a child experiencing neglect, two for abusive head trauma
and two for sexual abuse. In response we have progressed with development work to improve
our response to child neglect, and hope to launch a new identification and assessment process
(including training) later in 2021/22. Our Keep Baby Safe working group has continued to
meet with work progressing on supporting the national ICON campaign.
The gender split for the referrals was 7 female and 3 male. 7 referrals were received for
children aged under 10, and only 3 for children aged between 11-17.
The RBASB have received 6 Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) referrals throughout the
year, which is a significant reduction from the previous year (12). All SAR referrals are
screened via multi-agency panel and where the conditions for a Safeguarding Adult Review
as set out in The Care Act are met, a review is commissioned. Only one SAR referral
progressed to a full review this year.
Out of the 6 referrals, 4 related to self-neglect, 1 was about alcohol misuse and the other about
care provided in a care home. Out of the 6 referrals, 4 had male subjects, and the other 2
female subjects. Half of all referrals were for subjects aged between 55 – 64. Two out of the
three referrals in this age category were for self-neglect, and the other for alcohol misuse.
Benchmarking data available through national analysis has told us that this age profile is not
out of line.
At the end of March 2021 there were 3 ongoing SARs, 2 of which were around self-neglect,
and one conducted as a joint domestic homicide review / SAR. One SAR was published this
year for Adult D (“Lian”).
Adult D: “Lian”
Adult D was in her 20’s at the time of her death. During her life Adult D had been the
victim of sexual exploitation, and was known to have had Adverse Childhood Experiences.
Adult D was found deceased with the cause of death as combined drugs toxicity.
The review found that agencies could have done more to support Lian through her
transition from children to adult services, and that risk evaluation could have been
stronger. There was little attempt to engage family and friends as protective factors in
Adult D’s care.
We know from our reviews that we have more to do locally to improve multi-agency practice
around the following themes.

Page 15

9

What have we done in response to themes arising from safeguarding reviews?
Safer Sleep

Sexual Exploitation

Our local Keep Baby Safe Working
Group has developed local guidance
and safe sleep thermometers for new
parents in Rochdale. We will test out
through audit the effectiveness of this
work.

We are exploring how we can improve
assessment processes around sexual
exploitation, including in children who
have a learning disability and who
display sexualised behaviours.

Domestic Abuse
Understanding the impact of domestic
abuse on children and young people
is one of our priorities. We will review
and refresh our training and support
materials for professionals through
new campaigns next year.

Self-Neglect & Hoarding
There are 2 ongoing Safeguarding
Adult Reviews that feature SelfNeglect, and our ongoing RBSAB
training continues to include SelfNeglect and Hoarding.

Substance misuse

Domestic abuse

Substance misuse has been an
emerging theme from SAR referrals
and reviews and we will monitor
prevalence going forward. We need
to make sure we adopt a whole family
approach in this area.

A joint SAR / DHR has explored
victims and perpetrators of Domestic
Abuse.
We have delivered training and
briefing sessions which builds on
learning from the SAR / DHR.

Page 16

10

COVID-19 and the impact on safeguarding
In March 2020 as a result of COVID-19, the RBSAB and RBSCP, along with the rest of the
world, was introduced to a new way of working. The pandemic required possibly the most
concentrated and responsive period of activity in living memory. We responded to the
pandemic through a number of ways, ensuring that our core values of safeguarding and
protecting the most vulnerable residents was our top priority.





All meetings were moved online, held across Skype, MS Teams and Zoom
Training courses were adapted to be held virtually
Introduced regular calls with RBSCP & RBSAB Strategic Partners
Safeguarding Review referrals (for children & adults) were facilitated via video call

The pattern of case numbers in Rochdale
matched the national trend, with spikes in
November 2020 and January 2021. Locally, the
RBSCP and RBSAB supported the efforts of
campaigns to promote vaccinations with a
programme of social media posts, and a
dedicated section of both RBSCP and RBSAB
websites publishing updated information on
COVID-19.
HMR CCG provided regular updates to the
Safeguarding Adults Board on the impact of the
virus on local primary care services, and we
ensured that some of our most vulnerable older people were effectively safeguarded in
residential and nursing care homes.
A multi-agency audit in September 2020 explored the impact of COVID-19 and found that a
number of new ways of working supported ongoing engagement with and support for
vulnerable children, families and adults.
Rochdale & District MIND identified the most vulnerable service users at the outset of the
pandemic, and prioritised support for them during national lockdown.
Adult Care evidenced a lack of carer engagement in accepting help, linked to people’s
understandable reluctance to let people into their homes.
The pandemic did introduce new ways of working, and new opportunities. For example, Adult
Care now have new digital alternatives to engage with adults, and strengthened strategic
multi-agency links.
Children’s services prioritised seeing some children and families face to face where possible
despite the pandemic to ensure ongoing safeguarding.

Page 17

11

Safeguarding Activity
RBSCP and RBSAB scrutinise a range of performance information on a quarterly basis to
identify themes, trends, strengths and areas for development across all agencies.
Multi-agency safeguarding performance data is reported on a quarterly basis to the Quality
Assurance, Excellence in Practice and Engagement Sub Group, which covers a range of
indicators for children, young people and adults. Additionally, RBSCP Key Partners receive a
weekly highlight report on children’s safeguarding indicators from the multi-agency EHASH.
This helps to provide regular monitoring and assurance around activity, performance and
pressure points, and acted as an invaluable tool during the pandemic to understand the
increase in demand.
Children and young people: Safeguarding referrals
Children’s Social Care experienced an increasing rise in demand throughout the year with
1,000 more contacts received by EHASH than the previous year. The year end position at
31st March 2021 was higher than the statistical neighbour average (4182) or the Greater
Manchester Average (3991) last year.
The percentage of re-referrals to Children’s Social Care within 12 months has fluctuated
throughout the year, and although the figure has historically been lower than the North West
and Statistical Neighbour averages, reporting in 2020/21 showed that rates rose with
Rochdale being higher than comparators at 31st March 2021.
The highest referral source to EHASH throughout the year has been Greater Manchester
Police. The number of referrals received from school and colleges was low during the first 2
quarters (April – September), rising from quarter 3. This trend is in line with schools following
COVID-19 guidance and not opening for all pupils until September 2020.

Page 18

12

The proportion of referrals to EHASH classified as other has remained in the top 3 categories
all year. Referrals received from health agencies increased throughout the year and was one
of the highest referral sources alongside police, other and education last year.
The percentage of referrals due to abuse / neglect at the end of March 2021 was 80%, which
was the lowest point in-year (down from 90% at the end September 2020). 4863 contacts
received during the year by EHASH had a main category of domestic abuse.
Child protection
There have been more Section 47 enquiries held this year than the previous year, which
correlates with an increase in demand during the pandemic. The rate of enquiries has
increased this year, to 232 per 10,000 at the end of March 2021. This is higher than the
previous year and brings Rochdale closer to the statistical neighbour rate of 268 (at the end
of March 2020).

At the end of March 2021, 40% of all Child Protection Plans had a main category of neglect,
and this has consistently been the most prevalent main category of Child Protection Plans
throughout the year. We have more to do to improve our approach to child neglect, and one
of our strategic priorities for next year will include the completion and launch of our neglect
development work.
The number of children and young people on a Child Protection Plan for sexual abuse has
remained low at 1% of all plans for the first 6 months of the year, rising to 4% at the end of
March 2021.
Safeguarding adults
There has been a similar trend of increased safeguarding demand for adults in the borough,
with Adult Care receiving more safeguarding concerns this year (1083) than the previous year
(973). The number of Section 42 enquiries has remained consistent with 330 this year
compared with 331 in 2019/20. The conversion rate this year was 30%, a drop from 35% last
year.
There has been a drop in the number of other safeguarding enquiries from 9 last year to 0 this
year.

Page 19

13

Adult Care received an average of 1.09 enquiries per individual this year, compared with 1.08
the previous year.
Section 42: risk and outcomes
The proportion of physical abuse, psychological abuse, and financial or material abuse
recorded this year has increased from last year. There have been fewer recorded instances
of sexual abuse, discriminatory abuse and self-neglect.

The most notable differences from this year to the previous year with regards to risk location
are:





In a community service (decrease from the previous year)
Residential care home (decrease from the previous year)
Other (increase from the previous year)
Nursing care home (increase from the previous year)

Page 20

14

Making Safeguarding Personal
The Care Act 2014 prioritises the concept of making safeguarding personal and this is mirrored
in our new Quality Assurance Framework. We want to make sure that adults who receive
safeguarding support are engaged (where appropriate) in the care and support provided, and
have ownership over the outcomes at the end of the intervention. 72% of adults this year were
asked about MSP outcomes, compared with 73% the previous year. There were fewer
enquiries this year with the desired outcome fully achieved compared to the previous year,
although there has been an increase in the proportion of outcomes partially achieved.
No

Don’t
Know

Not
Recorded

72%

Individuals asked
but no outcomes
expressed
13%

10%

2%

3%

73%

18%

6%

1%

2%

Year

Individual asked and
outcomes expressed

2021
2020

Page 21

15

Evidence of impact on 2019/20 priorities
Our Annual Report last year identified 3 strategic priorities that we would continue to focus
on as part of our work programme:
1. Neglect and Self-Neglect
2. Complex Safeguarding
3. Domestic Abuse

Neglect and Self-Neglect
We have continued to prioritise neglect and self-neglect across children and adults.
Our Quality Assurance, Excellence in Practice and Engagement Sub Group have started
development work around refreshing our Child Neglect Strategy which will include a relaunch
of a simplified identification and assessment tool for those working at an Early Help level.
There are ongoing Safeguarding Adult Reviews where Self-Neglect is a feature and we will
utilise learning from these reviews to shape future local developments to improve our
response to Self-Neglect

Complex Safeguarding
Our Complex Safeguarding Sub Group continues to meet bi-monthly and we have refreshed
our working groups that sit under this sub group. Each working group has a refreshed action
plan and monitoring progress made as part of this work will continue to be a priority for
2021/22.
Our successful conferences around Complex Safeguarding will continue, and we want to
increase visibility of vulnerable cohorts through continued training and improved scrutiny of
performance information

Domestic Abuse
We have recognised that domestic abuse continues to be a concern in the borough, and of
the increased risks posed by the COVID-19 pandemic. RBSCP and RBSAB have facilitated
28 training courses this year that related to Domestic Abuse, including courses that sought to
raise awareness of other forms of abuse for example coercive controlling behaviour.

We will continue to monitor progress against these 3 strategic areas next year to ensure that
we build upon progress already made this year.

Page 22

16

Learning and Development
A number of training courses were adapted
for online delivery during the COVID-19
pandemic, although there was a hiatus on
training courses between April and
September 2020.

foundations of audit activity to drive forward
learning and development, but will prioritise
children’s and adults’ voices with a
dynamic approach rather than focusing on
compliance with policy and procedure.

In addition to the rolling training programme
for multi-agency practitioners, a number of
themed conferences and bespoke training
events were held throughout the year.

Three multi-agency audits have been
completed during the year.

RBSCP & RBSAB Training
A total of 614 people across all agencies
attended training courses and conferences
throughout the year, which is lower than the
800 accessing training the previous year.
To support the ongoing delivery of our
training during the pandemic, courses were
adapted for online delivery with participants
offered 2 different virtual platforms.
To help Partnership and Board Members
understand the impact of our training offer,
we completed an audit and analysis of
RBSCP and RBSAB training. The findings
will support the range of courses and
delivery method for training in future years,
and we hope to be able to demonstrate a
positive impact in next year’s annual report.
Contextual Safeguarding Conference
The annual Contextual Safeguarding
Conference held in February 2021 was
really well attended, with 101 delegates
registering to attend. The conference
introduced attendees to the domains of
contextual safeguarding, and explored
factors including peer networks, contextual
assessments and the local impact in
Rochdale.
Delegates appreciated the
interactive elements of the conference,
citing group work and being able to interact
with different agencies as strengths on the
day.

1) Multi-Agency COVID-19 audit
This audit explored how all agencies had
responded during the first 6 months of the
pandemic (March – September 2020).
New ways of working were evidenced with
a
collective
focus
on
prioritising
safeguarding activity.
2) Rapid Review Referrals
This audit looked at the drivers for Rapid
Review referrals across different agencies
exploring how professionals understood
the threshold for a referral and what
improvements were needed across the
system.
3) SAR Referrals
This audit looked at the SAR referrals that
did not progress to a review over the last 2
years. The audit concluded that decisions
not to progress to a SAR were appropriate
in all cases, and that feedback had been
provided to referrers. There was evidence
seen that agencies had improved the
quality of their referrals which included
more robust management oversight.
The RBSCP and RBSAB will continue with
multi-agency audits throughout 2021/22.
We have been reviewing our Quality
Assurance and Performance Frameworks
for both the Partnership and Board, and will
use these as our framework for ensuring
that learning is embedded and local
safeguarding services continue to improve
for vulnerable children and adults.

Quality Assurance and Improvement
The Quality Assurance, Excellence in
Practice and Engagement Sub Group have
commenced work to refresh the Quality
Assurance
Frameworks
for
the
Safeguarding Children Partnership and
Safeguarding Adults Board. The new
frameworks will build upon the existing

Page 23

17

Strategic Priorities
Our priorities for 2021/22 have been shaped by the progress we have collectively in recent
years, and will build on our continued successes to help safeguard some of the most
vulnerable people living in the borough.

1

We will finalise our new approach to child neglect and launch
this across all agencies working with children and families. This
will include a new assessment and identification process, as well
as multi-agency training.
We will explore how we can improve our collective safeguarding
response to adults known to suffer from self-neglect.

We will further improve our understanding of complex
safeguarding, ensuring that the right agencies are involved in
ongoing development work and that children, young people
and adults are receiving the right level of support at the right
time. We will have a renewed focus on how we understand
transitional safeguarding and prioritise this cohort that would
otherwise slip through the gaps.

3

2

There is more to do locally regarding domestic abuse as we
have seen this as a theme in ongoing safeguarding adult
reviews. We want to understand the underlying causes of
domestic abuse, not just how it presents in families. This will
include the impact on children and young people, and also
those instances where young people themselves are
perpetrators.

We want to ensure that the RBSCP and RBSAB has the right
structure and framework to continue to support our residents.
We will review the governance structure of our Board and
Partnership Sub Groups to streamline and refocus our work
on Complex Safeguarding, and reaffirm our approach to
Excellence in Practice across all agencies. We will also
embed engagement with children and adults in more of the
work we do as a Partnership and Board.

Page 24

4
18

Funding arrangements
As statutory bodies, hosted by the Local Authority, the Rochdale Borough Safeguarding
Children Partnership and Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults Board receive funding from
different agencies across the borough. The RBSCP and RBSAB Business Manager holds
responsibility for managing the budget.
The RBSCP and RBSAB receives financial contributions from partner agencies operating
within Rochdale borough.
After staffing costs, the main expenditure is Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews and
Safeguarding Adult Reviews. As safeguarding reviews do not always start and end in the
same financial year it is not always possible to apportion accurate costs to specific years.
RBSCP and RBSAB training is offered free of charge, and costs associated with venues and
trainers / facilitators are minimal. In this year, training has been delivered virtually due to new
working arrangements. For this reason, the Partnership and Board have not sought to chase
non-attendance fees for training courses or events.
For more information on income and expenditure throughout the 2020/21 financial year,
please contact RBSCP and RBSAB Business Unit at rbsb.admin@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 25

19

Appendices
Appendix A: Glossary of terms
DOLS
EHASH
GMFRS
HMR CCG
MAAST
MCA
PCFT
QAEIPE
RBSAB
RBSCP

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards
Early Help and Safeguarding Hub
Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service
Heywood Middleton & Rochdale NHS Clinical Commissioning Group
Multi Agency Adult Safeguarding Teams – weekly multi-agency safeguarding
signposting panel
Mental Capacity Act
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust
Quality Assurance, Excellence in Practice & Engagement Sub Group
Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults Board
Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children Partnership

Appendix B: Governance Structure

Further information on the remit of each of the Sub Groups can be found on the RBSCP &
RBSAB websites.

Page 26

20

www.rbscp.org

www.rbsab.org

01706 927 700
rbsb.admin@rochdale.gov.uk
4th Floor, Number 1 Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU
Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children Partnership
Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults Board
@LSCPB_Rochdale
Worried about a child or young person?

Worried about an adult?

Please call 0300 303 0440 to speak to someone in
Rochdale’s Children’s Social Care about your
concerns.

Please call 0300 303 8886 to speak to someone in
Rochdale’s Adult Social Care about your concerns
or email adult.care@rochdale.gov.uk

If you feel a child or young person is in immediate
danger please contact the police on 999

If you feel an adult is in immediate danger
please contact the police on 999

Alternatively you can contact the NSPCC 24/7 on
0808 800 5000

Page 27

Overview and Scrutiny

Andy King and Estelle Rowe

Agenda Item 6

Page 28

November 2021

About this presentation
1. Introduction to Your Trust
2. Financial Overview and Performance – ‘Building Back a Business’
3. Our Strategic Cornerstones and examples of key outcomes
Page 29

4. Summary
5. Questions

Who is Your Trust?
Delivery partner for Rochdale Borough Council managing leisure and cultural venues in
the borough on your behalf.
A independent charity but working extremely closely with RBC Officers.
Governed by a Board of Trustees who act in a voluntary capacity to oversee the
management of Your Trust.
Page 30

Board of Trustees

Roger Platt (Chair)

David Gelsthorpe

Three local councillors

Janine Partington (Vice Chair)

Julia Heap

Councillor Rina Paolucci (Conservative)

Janice Allen

Celia Makin-Bell

Councillor Peter Rush (Labour)

Gillian Bishop

Mohammed Sawar

Councillor Sameena Zaheer (Labour)

Steve Cooke

Anne Taylor-Woodward

Chris Davison

Martin Walker

How we benefit residents
To will inspire healthier, happier and creative people by
bringing together Your Culture; Your Health and Your
Community

Page 31

We want to change things for the better for residents of the
Borough, for example, we want to:

•

Improve children and young people’s chances of a
hopeful future

•

Improve quality of life for adults who are at risk of chronic
health conditions

•

Reduce isolation and frailty in older people

Your Trust
• Independent charity set up by RBC in 2007 – must follow charity finance rules, but council
has 20% control of the Board
• The buildings are all owned by RBC. Your Trust makes a contribution to their capital cost
every year

Page 32

• RBC invests in the buildings (e.g. energy efficiency, gym refurbs) which allows Your Trust to
return efficiency savings every year
• Income comes from 3 main sources – RBC Management Fee (22%), Earned Income
(60%) External Funds (18%)
• Profits (after efficiencies) are invested back into the community. Your Trust keeps a stability
reserve fund (equivalent to 2.5 months budgeted expenditure)
• Your Trust used £360k reserves in 2020/21 to cover the deficit as a result of the pandemic,
and will use more again in current year. So far no RBC money has been needed to help
Your Trust

Financial Resilience
Free reserves are less than 2.5 months’ gross expenditure (the lower end of expectations for
a charity of Your Trust’s size).
We balance the need for resilience with our aim of re-investing as much as possible back into
the community.
Page 33

Months of Available Reserves
3.00
2.50
1.50
1.00
0.50

20

20

Ye
ar

em

ic

/2
0

/2

1

Pa
nd

20

19

/1
9

20

18

/1
8

20

17

/1
7

20

16

/1
6

20

15

/1
5

20

14

/1
4

20

13

/1
3

20

12

/1
2

20

11

/1
1

20

10

/1
0

20

09

/0
9

08
20

07

/0
8

20

Months

2.00

Value For Money
For every for every £1 of RBC Management Fee, Your Trust is able to earn additional funds
(earned income, external funding) or make efficiencies for the council.
Over the whole life of the contract, Your Trust’s rate of return on each £1 of Management Fee
is £3.26. Prior to the pandemic, the figure reached £4.40

5.00
4.50
4.00
3.50
3.00
2.50
2.00
1.50
1.00
0.50
0.00

4.40
3.94

3.26

2.08

2.26

2.33

4.07

3.42
3.15

3.26

2.36

1.36
1.02

1.08

20
08
/0
20 9
09
/1
20 0
10
/1
20 1
11
/
20 12
12
/
20 13
13
/1
20 4
14
/1
20 5
15
/1
20 6
16
/
20 17
17
/
20 18
18
/1
20 9
19
/2
Cu
0
m 202
ul
0
at /2
1
iv
e
To
ta
l

£

Page 34

£ For £ Return On Management Fee

The Management Fee Levers In Added Value
How The Management Fee Is Spent • Over half of the Management Fee is
Hollingworth
Lake , 10%
Page 35

Sport &
Leisure ,
18%

Events, Arts
& Heritage,
56%

Community
Venues, 6%

Community,
Health &
Participation,
10%

spent on the Events, Arts & Heritage
Service, where it is harder to charge
commercial fees. However the
service attracts external funding
(often up to 50% of gross costs),
which enables Your Trust to provide
even more programmes and projects
both in venues and in the community

• Around 10% of the Management Fee
supports the gross costs of the
Community Health & Participation
Service. However this team
generates over 3 times as much in
external income and contracts, which
support those most in need in our
communities

External Funding Growth
Your Trust uses its charitable status to lever in additional funding sources
from grant-making bodies that may not be accessible to local authorities.
In the pandemic year of 2020/21, we successfully grew the percentage of
external funds (compared to the RBC Management Fee) to just under 80%,
or c £2m.
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
20
07
/
20 08
08
/
20 09
09
/1
20 0
10
/1
20 1
11
/
20 12
12
/1
20 3
13
/1
20 4
14
/
20 15
15
/1
20 6
16
/1
20 7
17
/
20
20 18
20
18
/2
/1
1
2
Pa 01 9
nd 9/
em 20
ic
Ye
ar

Page 36

External Funding as % of Management Fee

Financial Performance at P6 – 2021/22
• After the first 6 months of 2021/22, Your Trust has made a surplus of £768k, however the
position was supported by Covid business grants and furlough income in the first 6 months of
the year (£480k). These grants will not be repeated.
• The projected deficit to the end of the year is around £236k
Page 37

Outturn
2019/20

Outturn
2020/21

(9,716)

(6,094)

(4,457)

Total Employees

5,495

4,381

2,255

(8,041)
5,002

Total Premises

1,512

640

510

1,249

138

77

26

165

Supplies and Services

2,314

1,283

862

1,778

Department recharges

71

73

36

83

(187)

360

(768)

236

Total Income

Transport Costs

Total (surplus)/deficit

Position at P6 Forecast to end
2021/22
of year

Key Issues And Risks
The forecast deficit to year-end has reduced from original estimates because of
the strong build-back in income. We are forecasting £236k deficit at the end of
2021/22.
Caution must be taken with the forecast because of the potential for further
restrictions to be introduced, and the staffing situation, see below
Page 38

The main source of income after the Management Fee is Leisure income. This is
building back very well after the last lockdown period from a low-point at
December 2020 when numbers dropped to just over 5,600.
However there was a 1% decline in October despite strong new membership
numbers - we are seeking to understand why people are leaving

Recruitment across leisure trusts across GM is very challenging e.g.
swimming where there are savings because of staff shortages but plenty
of demand in the community.
We have budgeted to fill staff vacancies, however whether this
happens is uncertain. Un-filled vacancies will have an impact on our
final position, creating savings, but putting immense pressure on
existing teams to keep facilities open.

Leisure Income Recovery

2643 2814

2896

2
M 021
ay
2
Ju 02
ne 1
2
Ju 021
l
Au y 20
Se gu 21
pt st
em 20
be 21
Oc r 2
to
0
be 21
r2
02
1

ril

2
M 02
ay 1
Ju 202
ne 1
2
Ju 021
Au ly 2
Se gu 021
pt st
em 20
b 2
Oc er 1
to 202
be 1
r2
02
1

6,116

2249 2327 2355 2429

2135

ril

6,498

7,993 8,6238,521
7,665
6,965 7,221

Ap

10,656

Swimming Members

3577

M
De arc
ce h 2
m
0
be 20
r2
02
0

Fitness Members

Ap

12,000
10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000
0

M
De arc
ce h 2
m
0
be 20
r2
02
0

Page 39

Fitness Membership is now back to 80% of pre-pandemic levels at 8,521
members
Swimming lessons have returned to 81% of pre-pandemic levels - 2896 on
programme, lessons at 88% occupancy.
N.b. Gymnastics has grown from 0 in May to 428, occupancy at 92%

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Culture and Heritage highlights

Page 43

Project Grant for Exhibitions - We have
recently been awarded £75,000 from Arts
Council England towards three major cocreation projects starting this month and
concluding in early 2023.
The Football Art Prize – An open art competition.
An esteemed panel of judges including ex-England
goalkeeper David James and Turner Prize-winning
artist Mark Wallinger will select approximately sixty
works for inclusion in an exhibition opening at
Touchstones in March 2022 (to coincide with the
World Cup) and then touring to the Millennium
Gallery, Sheffield and Sunderland Museum.
Grayson Perry Exhibition - In July we opened
Grayson Perry: The Vanity of Small Differences. It
proved hugely popular with high daily visitor figures
and positive feedback. The show is accompanied
by a special display of work by John Collier (aka
Tim Bobbin) drawn from the borough’s art
collection and a programme of activities,
workshops and talks including Grayson Perry
himself.

Community Development Team
• Core Funding from Management fee pays for central Development Team (3 Posts plus support
costs)
• Additional Funding of £110k p.a. covers:
Page 44

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Disability and Inclusion work
Active Living Programme
Healthy Workforce
Children and Young People Weight Management
Healthy Families
Go4IT
Street Games programme

Development Team
• External Funding is then brought into the Borough by the Core Team to fund various projects
such as:

Programme and Value Description

Page 45

#Thrive £99k

Mental health support for children and young people. 8500
contacts in 6 months this year.

Mental Health Support
Team £118k

In partnership with Pennine Care and others set up as a result
of Covid. 3500 children supported so far this year in school
and extra-curricular settings.

Local Pilot £308k

With Action Together and Greater Sport/ Sport England this
funding is to help get people active who need support the
most.

Tier 2 Weight Mgt £72k

Free Adult Weight management support. So far 120 adults
enrolled and supported.

Skills for Sport £50k

Skills programme for unemployed offering training,
qualifications and work placements. Funded by Hopwood
College, RBC.
Your Trust staff provide support for residents across the
Borough in all matters related to Wellbeing.

Int. N’Hood Team £155k

Mentally Healthy Schools
• Overview
• Mindful Movements began in November 2020
• 2700 children
• 13 primary schools & 1 Home Ed Session (2020/21)
Page 46

Holiday Activity and Food
3,229 children engaged (some projects
yet to report)
Page 47

60% primary and 40% secondary
Less than 5% SEND (25% eligible)
60 providers
ME learning training offer

Sessions in local parks and outdoor spaces
Bowlee Community Organisation

Page 48

Deeplish children visiting Hollingworth Lake

Trips and Outdoor Activities with Rochdale Youth service

Page 49

Photography, Art and Poetry

Page 50

Page 51

Hopwood Hall Zoo

Caring and Sharing- Rochdale

Page 52

Impact headlines
Our Customer Satisfaction metric, the Net Promoter Score result Year to date is 49% v a national
benchmark of 49%.
Membership and Swimming lesson recovery
Page 53

• 83% of March 2020 – Fitness Membership recovered compared to pre-pandemic
• 78.94% of March 2020 – Swim Academy recovered compared to pre-pandemic
• 1822 pupils in current school swimming term
• 32% are likely to swim 25m by the end of the current academic year
• 21% have the potential to be able to swim 25m by the end of the current academic year
• 35% are unlikely to be able to swim 25m by the end of the current academic year

Page 54

£6,700,000+ bids (June – September)
•

£120k New post to develop creative learning opportunities with schools, arts and community
organisations and 3 years of new major events e.g. Gaia

•

£15k for free summer outdoor theatre performances in parks and town centres in each
township

Page 55

•

•

£804k to CRF for Cooperative leadership, cultural quarter, township culture hubs, capital
plans for venues, volunteers
£1m Arts Council England Creative People and Places programme for ‘Culture Coop’
(cooperative creative programmes with residents)

•

£4.2m to Arts Council England Cultural Development Fund – Touchstones, Culture Quarter
and Cooperative Leadership

•

Arts Council England Priority Place – Rochdale confirmed as one of 15 places in North for
increased investment between 2021 to 2024.

Page 56

Environment headlines
• Your Trust have signed up to the RBC ‘Eco-Pledge’ and are considering the SME Climate Hub
Commitment too:
• The CEO attends the RBC Climate Emergency meetings monthly and the Environment Cornerstone
group also meet monthly. Mark Bramah from RBC attends these meetings to ensure a collaborative
approach to tackling climate change.
Page 57

• Environmental Audits and reports are being carried out across all centres beginning with the cultural
venues utilising external expertise.
• Leisure Centres are included in the SALIX project to install air and ground source heat pumps etc so
will be audited following this work is completed in 2022.
• A detailed ‘Sustainability Plan’ will be produced following these audits.

Hollingworth Lake
Country Park
Page 58

Masterplan – project update

The masterplan study focuses on key acquisitions
under ownership of Rochdale Borough Council,
these are located around the perimeter of
Hollingworth Lake and are identified on the
masterplan opposite.
These include:
• ZONE A: Lake Bank Activity Centre, Hollingworth
Lake Rowing Club and Sailing Club.
• ZONE B: Hollingworth Road Car Park & Akzo
Nobel Residential Site.

Page 59

• ZONE C: Hollingworth Lake Visitor Centre.
• ZONE D: Hollingworth Fold Camp Site and
Cottage.
• ZONE E: Nature Reserve.
• ZONE F: Pavilion Café and The Promontory.
• ZONE G: The TS Palatine Building
Each zone is discussed in more detail on the
following pages with a photographic record and
observations of each of the facilities.

PROJECT: GLAMPING
LOCATION: ZONE D
FUNDING: £450K
SOURCE: CAPITAL

Page 60

UPDATE NOVEMBER 2021
Awaiting Pre app meeting outcome

•

Query over Ribble Pods – new requirement to
procure competitively

•

Power to site approx. £100k and 3 month wait

•

Research and cost off grid as another option

•

Another glamping site application in at moment
nearby – 2 basic pods

Page 61

•

•

Condition of road to site and access

•

Parking solution required at visitor centre

•

Pod costs increasing due to supply issues
with materials

•

Spec for glamping tender to be based on original
design and specification from Ribble

•

Could have 2 standard of pods if cost an issue,
so 5 high standard, 5 standard for example

PROJECT: COTTAGE REDEVELOPMENT
LOCATION: ZONE D
FUNDING: £110K
SOURCE: CAPITAL

NOTES:
To be used as accommodation for site warden/staff
Spec to be revised – reduce costs
Page 62

Keeping existing smaller bedrooms. One as office
Admin hub for site
Options for sale off resale items
Parking limited (ranger vehicles?)
Gardens to be used for glamping additions
Income from Cottage to be added to Glamping
income target

UPDATE NOVEMBER 2021
•

Overall condition ok

•

External areas need work to remove vegetation
and open up

•

Side door to be replaced with stable door to act
as public access point/reception with door bell

Page 63

•

Need to arrange network provision

•

Costing up sand blasting of exterior

•

Recent re-wire a bonus, but requires decoration

•

Potential saving to offset an glamping
cost increases

•

May require additional wooden building for
provision of a site shop/store

PROJECT: HIGN NETS
LOCATION: ZONE F
FUNDING: £300K
SOURCE: CAPITAL

NOTES:
Cost potentially lower than budget
Groundwork cost currently unknown
Page 64

Option to add a bouldering course –
phase 2 – later date

UPDATE NOVEMBER 2021
Mel (designer) attended site 2 weeks ago

•

Final Plans due shortly

•

Asked to cost up full construction inc. fencing

•

RBC to provide some access works/paths

•

Rangers involved with Mel in agreeing site taking
into account trees and vegetation

Page 65

•

•

Small wooden building required for reception
point so power requirements

•

Some sheltered spectator provision also needed

•

May need to amend current exemption

•

Access to site for construction challenging

•

Bridge weight limit?

•

Concerns from Dicky Steps (in hand)

PROJECT: REPLACEMENT HOLWAC
LOCATION: ZONE A
FUNDING: £3,000K
SOURCE: CAPITAL
OTHER: S106

NOTES:
Income ask require more commercial space.
Bigger café and more multi use to facilitiate
greater income generation
Page 66

Use of Pozzoni – revise layout
Extend balcony area?
Rowing club building to be cladded not rebuilt
Address jetty issues and water level changes
£300k in 21-22 rest moved over to 22-23

PROJECT: PALLATINE
LOCATION: ZONE G
FUNDING: £90K
SOURCE: CAPITAL

NOTES:
Is budget feasible for full redevelopment?
Make usable for alt to HOLWAC during new build

Page 67

Need purpose built units at High Nets –
Palentine not the solution
Need accurate cost of conversion
Current suggestion to use as education facility
and base for some of the water based activities
and also as for storage
Enhanced security needed if storage utilised
Hopefully can be used as a drop of stop for
Lady K (water levels and access permitting)
in the future
Outdoor Pool  (would be nice)

PROJECT: FISHING, PICNIC TABLES, SIGNS
LOCATION: ALL ZONES
FUNDING: £27K
SOURCE: CAPITAL
OTHER: S106, OTHER POTS

NOTES:
Fishing difficult for permanent points due to
water levels
Page 68

Signage – branding, who controls sign production
BBQ areas?
Footpath signs, bike trails?
Possibility of sculptures?
Site Audit with YT and RBC to take place shortly
Need to provide some information boards (digital)
Current costing up some selfie points –
free promotion/fun

PROJECT: BIRD WATCH REPLACEMENT
LOCATION: ZONE
FUNDING: £35 - 40K
SOURCE: NON CAPITAL
SOURCE: RSPCA

NOTES:
Ranger Led
Page 69

Online Donations (QR Code)
Estimate per visit for upkeep
Wheelchair Accessible (Funding?)
Planning? How RBC take ownership

PROJECT: EDUCATION SPACE
LOCATION: ZONE
FUNDING: £50K
SOURCE: NON CAPITAL
OTHER: S106, SPONSOR, FUNDRAISE

NOTES:
Xxxxx

Page 70

Summary
• Your Trust is still dependant on the ‘open book’ support from RBC yet is successfully attracting
customers back including the crucial fitness members and children on swimming lessons. The support
from RBC is appreciated and will be required past April 2022 but there is optimism that the ring-fenced
£1.4m will be sufficient until we are able to return to a revised contractual management fee subject to
further lock-downs and restrictions being imposed

Page 71

• Customers have returned above and beyond expectations to date but very latest figures are
concerning.
• Due to prudent forward purchasing Your Trust are sheltered from the huge increases in energy costs for
now but remain a concern. The SALIX investment is key to reducing consumption and costs in future
years.
• The success of attracting external funding by utilising our charitable status and networking capabilities
is successful and we intend to build on this for the sake of the Borough utilise our new brand and
identity.
• Measuring our ‘impact’ effectively remains a challenge and we are committed to working with RBC,
Action Together and other Partners to work collaboratively on this aspect.
• We are at Your Service.

Page 72

Questions?

Agenda Item 7
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

25th November 2021
Adult Care
Jane Timson
Public

Adult Social Care “Making Experiences Count” policy Review
Executive Summary
1.1 The Local Authority Social Services and National Health Service Complaints
(England) Regulations 2009 places a duty on Local Authorities on the way that
complaints about Health and Social Care matters are dealt with.
1.2

Adult Care Services are those functions exercised by the Council in
accordance with the Care Act 2014, which relate to care and support
services to adults with a learning disability, physical disability, a mental
health problem, older adults and also to carers. A Health and Social Care
complaint are therefore matters which arise from care and support
assessments, adult health or adult care services, members of staff working in
Adult Care or health services or any policy concerning these.

1.3 The “Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care
and Health” policy has been in place since 2009. This complaint policy refers
to adult care and health matters delivered by Rochdale Adult Care Services
that service users or their representatives approach Adult Care about.
Not all complaints received by Adult Care are eligible to be considered under
the statutory procedure, and where a complaint does not meet the criteria, it
will be considered under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure. .
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2018-12-07-corporate-complaints-policyv5.pdf
1.4 If the matter can be resolved within 24 hours for the complainant, this is not
classed as a formal complaint and Adult Care will make every effort to
resolve this at this stage. This is a legislative requirement and the 24 hour
period cannot be extended. These are termed “Informal Complaints”.
Complaints that cannot be resolved informally within 24 hours are therefore
formal complaints.
Adult Care have seen a rise in formal complaints it has received over recent
1.5 years:

Page 73

Table 1
Period
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22

Q1
7
12
17
13

Complaints Opened- Quarterly
Q2
Q3
Q4
11
12
15
13
17
13
13
12
19
12
-

TOTAL
45
55
61
-

The process for dealing with Adult Social Care complaints is a one stage
1.6 process. If the complainant remains dissatisfied with the outcome of their
complaint they may refer their concerns for consideration by the Local
Government & Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO). Rochdale Adult Care
have also seen increases in the number of complaints investigated by the
LGSCO. The total number of cases that the LGSCO received about Rochdale
Adult Care in 2020/21 was 15 (compared with 11 in Bolton. 10 in Oldham, 5
each in Blackburn, Bury and Tameside). For the first 6 months of this
financial year, LGSCO have received 5 new cases, have closed 10, leaving
10 LGSCO ongoing enquiries.
Consideration has been given to the reason for the increase in formal
1.7 complaints. The increase in the number of complaints escalated to the
LGSCO is an indication that members of the public are unhappy with the
complaint response that they have received from Adult Care. This may be for
a myriad of reasons, but it is apparent that clearer communication with
complainants will assist to manage understanding of complaint processes
and expectations.
It is proposed therefore to refresh the “Making Experiences Count” process to
1.8 make it an outward public facing policy to help members of the public be clearer
of how Adult Care will respond to their complaint. If agreed, the policy will be
placed on the council website in a way that makes it clearer to members of the
public how to complain.
An inward facing procedure will be written for Adult Care staff to help make
the process when dealing with a complaint explicitly clear. The procedure will
contain templates to help provide consistency when responding with a
1.9 complaint. The procedure launch will be accompanied by training sessions for
staff.

Recommendation
2.1

That cabinet gives approval to the updated “ Making Experiences Count- Joint
Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health” policy in order to improve the
customer experience should they need to make a complaint.

Page 74

2.2

That Cabinet agree for clearer signposting to the Adult Care complaint policy on the
corporate website

.
Reason for Recommendation
3.1

Currently, the “Making Experiences Count” process acts as both as a policy
for members of public as well as the procedure for how Adult Care should
handle a complaint.

3.2

However, a review of “Making Experiences Count”, following a formal
complaint about the process itself, has exposed a real clack of clarity and
understandable confusion for members of the public as it provides a detailed
explanation on the Corporate Complaints policy, leading complainants
understandably expecting their complaint will be dealt with in a similar
timescaled, staged fashion.

3.3

It gives no real guidance to Adult Care practitioners handling complaints on
practice expectations when dealing with a complaint. It has also become
clear, following recent complaint escalations within Adult Care that
numerous complaints are being dealt with “informally”, when they should
have immediately been escalated as “formal”, which is creating additional
frustration for members of the public.

Key Points for Consideration
4.1 The way that Health and Social Care complaints are dealt with is set in
legislation. The process cannot be altered. However, it is hoped by making the
written process clearer that this will help make the process clearer to both
members of the public and to the Adult Care staff who are enacting the
process.
4.2 It is recognised that the practice within Adult Care has inadvertently not always
been compliant with the expectations in the legislation, particular in relation to
the understanding that “informal” complaints need to have a resolution to the
satisfaction of the complainant within 24 hours.
The impact on clarifying the process for Adult Care practitioners will mean a
4.3 better customer experience for those that need to raise a complaint. However,
the impact of clarifying the difference between “informal” and “formal
“complaints” for practitioners will have the likely consequence of appearing to
increase the number of complaints the service receives as more complaints
currently dealt with as “ informal” will be classed as “formal” and will be more
visible on the corporate complaints tracker.
This should not be considered a negative impact, but in fact gives greater
4.4 scrutiny of all complaints being dealt with by the service.

Page 75

Adult Care senior management team have agreed that there needs to be
4.5 stronger internal assurance of complaints which will now receive monthly
scrutiny by the senior management team so more timely escalations are better
managed. The assurance will include better visibility of management of
individual complaints, including oversight of acknowledgement, action plan
setting, timescales for investigation and a rationale for any extension to
timescales. Complaints will be added to the Director of Social Services
dashboard and be reported to Adult Care Strategic Partnership Board for
oversight.
This will provide better oversight of all complaint outcomes and ensure that any
4.6 learning is recognised and acted upon to make improvements to service
provision.
Ultimately, such oversight should reduce the numbers of complaints that
4.7 members of the public escalate to the LGSCO.

Alternatives Considered
4.8

The alternative is to continue with the current version of “Making Experiences Count”
on the corporate website. It is already known from customer feedback that the written
guidance is unclear to members of the public. Not making changes could lead to a
continued increase in complaints being progressed to the LGSCO, leading to
reputational damage for the council and potential financial impact on the council. Both
these factors will impact on residents. Not making changes could also lead to
potential legal challenges.

Costs and Budget Summary
5.1

5.2

5.3

The total cost of agreed local settlements for LGSCO complaint decisions
during 2020-21 was £1,000 against 4 upheld cases. However, it needs to
be recognised that the LGSCO halted their investigations at the start of the
COVID-19 pandemic and Adult Care are still awaiting LGSCO decisions on
complaints that were escalated to the LGSCO in 2020-21.
Whilst there is no direct financial impact on making the complaints process
clearer to members of the public, it is hoped that clearer internal procedures
on dealing with complaints will prevent some cases from being escalated to
the LGSCO with resulting financial settlements.
However, it does need to be recognised that there will be an impact on officer
time to improve the process, in terms of training time for staff and improved
monitoring of complaints across the service.

Page 76

Risk and Policy Implications
6.1

Adult Care are governed by statutory duties in the way that complaints are handled. It
is clear that there needs to be refreshed expectations for Adult Care employees on
handling complaints.

6.2

There are risks of legal challenge by allowing the continued version of “Making
Experiences Count” available to the members of the public as it is causing confusion,
evidenced by a couple of recent formal complaints.

Consultation
7.1

8.

Consultation on the suggested written content within “Making Experiences Count” has
been taken with the Corporate Complaints Team and also with the Senior
Management Team of Adult Care. It needs to be stressed that the process has not
been changed, which is set in legislation, but the guidance has been made clearer to
members of the public, following receipt of a formal complaint about the lack of clarity
in the current version.
Background Papers
There are no background papers, all
relevant information is embedded in
the attached proposed policy
document.

For Further Information Contact:

Place of Inspection
Not applicable

Jane Timson
Jane.timson@rochdale.gov.uk 01706
927989

Page 77

Making Experiences
Count - Joint
Complaints Process for
Adult Care and Health
Policy

Page 78

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

Document Control
Document Title: Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints
Process for Adult Care and Health
Summary
Publication Date

13.10.2017

Related Legislation / Applicable Section
of Legislation

The Equality Act 2010
The Local Authority Social Services and National Health
Service Complaints (England) Regulations 2009

Related Policies, Strategies, Guideline
Documents

Equality and Diversity Policy No Matter Who

Replaces
Joint Policy (Yes/No)

Yes

Name of Partner(s) if joint

HMR CCG

Policy Owner (Name/Position)

Martin Lawton, Assistant Director (Operations)

Policy Author (Name/Position)

Carolyn Whitham, Customer Feedback Lead and Fiona LoveRoberts, Advanced Practitioner

Applies to

Adult Care employees

Review of Policy
Last Review Date

02.11.2021

Review undertaken by

Jane Timson, Principal Social Worker and Strategic Safeguarding
Lead

Next Review Date

30.11.2022

Document Approvals
This document requires the following approvals.
Name
Editorial Board

rochdale.gov.uk

Title
EB

Date of Issue
13.10.2017

Page 79

Version Number
9.0

1

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

Terms
Title

Person

Role

Responsible Person /
Responsible Officer:

This is generally the Chief
Executive; however this is
usually a delegated
responsibility to the Director
of Adult Care (DASS)

To be ultimately responsible for complaints within the
service, and to sign off serious complaints where
there is potential for legal action, or large financial
impact.

Adjudicating Officer

Head of Service within Adult
Care

To allocate investigations to relevant managers or
team leaders to carry out. To adjudicate on
complaints outcomes and agree responses.

Investigating Officer

Manager or staff member
within Adult Care

To investigate the detail of the complaint within the
defined process, complete an investigation report
and draft a response to the complainant for sign off
by the Adjudicating Officer.

Scope
This policy relates to complaints, compliments and queries received in relation to Rochdale
Adult Care and care services commissioned on their behalf. Complaints relating to adult
care and health matters will be investigated in line with this policy. All other complaints are
investigated in line with the Corporate Complaints Policy.
(http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2018-12-07-corporate-complaints-policy-v5.pdf )
This policy also covers compliments, queries and MPs and Councillors approaches.
When complaints, compliments or queries are received by the authority, a determination
needs to be made as to whether the complaint relates to social care concerns or whether
the complaint relates to other concerns. The appropriate process will then be followed, as
there are different policies and procedures in place for social care concerns due to statutory
requirements for adult care and health complaints. The legislation that governs this is the
Local Authority Social Services and National Health Service Complaints (England)
Regulations 2009

Rochdale’s values
Rochdale Council is committed to delivering better services to the citizens of Rochdale and
improving the quality of life for all residents.
Complaints, concerns and compliments are all mechanisms of feedback and all need to be
valued. Once a person is attempting to complain, they have already received a service that
they are not completely satisfied with and need to be dealt with in a considerate way.
Clear and efficient communication makes a big difference to how people perceive a service.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 80

2

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

The Council aims to achieve maximum social inclusion, participation and access by
removing discrimination that may be faced by its citizens who want, need and are entitled
to, its services.
The Council recognises that it has a responsibility to ensure quality services which respond
flexibly and sensitively to the needs of individuals and their carers. Implicit in this is
recognition of the need to protect adults at risk and to monitor service delivery. The
Corporate Complaints and Making Experiences Count policies are a means of achieving
this goal.
Some customers of services may find it difficult to express their worries, problems and
concerns therefore it is necessary to ensure that there is a culture which assures people
that they will be listened to, taken seriously and that they will receive a fair and prompt
response.
Information gathered in the course of handling complaints and representations also serves
the purpose of quality control and informs service improvements to the benefit of customers.

Valuing diversity
Rochdale is a distinctive and diverse place. The Council values diversity in all its customers
and employees and our aim is that our services, facilities and resources are accessible and
useful to every citizen regardless of gender, age, ethnic origin, religious belief, impairment,
marital status, sexual orientation, caring status, armed or ex-armed forces personnel or any
other individual characteristic which may unfairly affect a person’s opportunity in life.

Adult Care and Health Complaints
Adult care and health complaints are matters which arise from care and support
assessments, adult health or adult care services, members of staff working in Adult Care or
health services or any policy concerning these. This complaint policy refers to adult care
and health matters that service users or their representatives approach us about. Rochdale
Council’s Corporate Complaints Policy refers to exemptions; those services which are
governed by statute and not Council edict.
Adult Care Services are ‘exemptions’ in line with this as these complaints are governed by
statute.
This policy is concerned with the services delivered by Rochdale’s Adult Care Services.
Adult Care Services are those functions exercised by the Council in accordance with the
Care Act 2014, which relate to care and support services to adults with a learning disability,
physical disability, a mental health problem, older adults and also to carers.

Informal Complaints
rochdale.gov.uk

Page 81

3

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

If the matter can be resolved within 24 hours for the complainant, this is not classed as a
formal complaint and Adult Care will make every effort to resolve this at this stage. This is a
legislative requirement and the 24 hour period cannot be extended. If the matter can be
resolved within 24 hours, Adult Care will contact the complainant within this period with the
proposed solution. If the complainant is happy with the response, a brief note will be sent to
the Rochdale Borough Council Customer Feedback Team advising them what has
occurred.
If the resolution cannot be agreed within 24 hours, the complainant will be contacted and
advised that this requires further investigation, and that consultation needs to be undertaken
with colleagues on how best to address their concerns. Adult Care will ensure that they
have a full note of the complainant concerns and send them written details of the complaint
to ensure that all areas of complaint have been comprehensively detailed and interpreted
correctly.

Making a complaint
Information is available at Complaints - social care services (rochdale.gov.uk) on how to
make a complaint about Adult Care services and explains what to expect if a complaint is
raised. Complaints can be made in writing, online, by telephone, e-mail, or in person at a
Council Customer Information Point. Otherwise, complaints can be raised directly with Adult
Care or with the Rochdale Borough Council Customer Feedback Team:


By telephone 01706 923537



In writing to Customer Feedback Team, Floor 3, Number One Riverside, Smith
Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU



Or email feedback.council@rochdale.gov.uk

Further information on what you can expect when you make a complaint can be found
below on page 13.
Some complaints may be covered by different legislation or local authority system. Advice is
available on the right way to complain from an Adult Care officer, a provider service or the
Rochdale Borough Council Customer Feedback Team. For example, there is a Corporate
Complaints Policy that for complaints that are not related to adult care and health.
Complaints about residential services, domiciliary care and some day care services for
adults can also be made to the Care Quality Commission (CQC).

Compliments
This relates to all compliments received by the authority. Compliments can be made in
similar ways as complaints, in writing, online, by telephone, by e-mail or in person at a
Council Customer Information Point.
Where compliments are received in person or by phone, the person should be thanked.
rochdale.gov.uk

Page 82

4

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

Compliments received on behalf of Adult Care should be acknowledged, and the person
thanked for taking the time to compliment the service.

MPs and Councillors
There is a bespoke system to capture queries from Members and MPs. Members and MPs
have been issued with a list of "Allocated Officers" in each service with whom they should log
their query.
In Adult Care the Allocated Officers can be reached on 01706 922844 or 01706 922918

Complaint handling principles
All references here to complaints also refer to any feedback raised with Rochdale Adult
Care Services.
These arrangements are based on the principles that:


Customer care is a priority



Complaints are dealt with efficiently



Complaints are properly investigated



A complaint should always be received in a polite and positive manner and
complainants treated with respect and courtesy



Complainants receive so far as is reasonably practical, assistance to enable them to
understand the procedure in relation to complaints or advice on where they may
obtain such assistance. A customer should be assisted to make a complaint if
necessary



Customer communication support needs are identified and information is made
available in the person’s preferred method of communication, for example LARGE
PRINT braille, audio or e-mail. Where a person’s first language is not English,
interpreting services should be arranged. Likewise access for wheelchair users will
be considered



Complainants receive a timely and appropriate response



Complainants are told the outcome of the investigation of their complaint



Action is taken as necessary in the light of the outcome of a complaint and learning
incorporated into future service design or practice improvement.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 83

5

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

Who can make a complaint?
A complaint can be made by any person who is receiving or has received services from
Adult Care (in line with definitions of time limits and services as defined within this policy)
and any person who is affected, or likely to be affected by the action, omission or decision
of the responsible organisation which is the subject of the complaint.
A complaint may also be made by a representative of a person who:


Has died



Is unable to make the complaint themselves because of physical incapacity



Lacks capacity within the meaning of the Mental Capacity Act 2005



Has requested the representative to act on their behalf



Has a legal power to act on a person’s behalf, for example, Lasting Power of
Attorney

For each of these scenarios, internal Council records will be checked, partner agency
records requested where appropriate and external verification requested by the complainant
in situations where no verifying information can be found (this will be dealt with in the most
sensitive way possible).
Where a representative is acting on the person’s behalf and the person whose behalf they
are acting on has the ability to make the decision or complaint for themselves a written
consent form must be completed by the person on whose behalf the complaint is being
made to verify the assertion that they consent to the complaint being made on their behalf.
Where a representative makes a complaint on behalf of a person who lacks capacity within
the meaning of the Mental Capacity Act 2005 and we are not satisfied that the
representative is conducting the complaint in the best interests of the person on whose
behalf the complaint is being made, the matter will be submitted to the Head of Service for
consideration. Where the decision is made to not continue to consider the complaint, we will
notify the representative in writing of this and the reasons for this decision.
For the remainder of this policy, where a complainant is referred to, this also includes a
representative.

What is not a complaint under these arrangements?
The following are examples of what is not a complaint under these arrangements, a
complaint:


Made by a Local Authority, NHS body, primary care provider or independent provider
is not covered under these arrangements

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 84

6

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy



Made by an employee of the a Local Authority or NHS body about any matter relating
to that employment



Made orally and resolved informally the following day to the complainant’s
satisfaction



That has the same subject matter as a complaint which has been investigated
previously by Adult Social Care.



Which has been the subject matter of, or is currently the subject matter of a
complaint being investigated by the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
or the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman.



Arising out of an alleged failure of Adult Care Services to comply with a Freedom of
Information Act 2000 request. Complaints of this nature should be directed to
foi@rochdale.gov.uk

Where Adult Care considers that a complaint falls into any of these above categories and
therefore is not considered to be a complaint for the purposes of these regulations, and
aside where a complaint is made orally and the complainant can be advised within 24
hours, the complainant can expect to be written to as soon as reasonably practicable and
advised that Adult Care are unable to investigate their complaint and the reasons for the
decision.

Time limits
A complaint must not be made more than 12 months after the date on which the subject
matter of the complaint occurred or the date at which the matter came to the complainant’s
attention. An exception to this is where the complainant had good reason for not making the
complaint within the time period and notwithstanding the reason, where it is still possible to
investigate the matter effectively and fairly. This decision should be made by the Customer
Feedback Lead.

Formal Complaints
A complaint can be made in writing, online, by telephone, e-mail, or in person at a Council
Customer Information Point or direct to Adult Care service.
Verbal Concerns
If the complaint is made verbally, Adult Care will ascertain if the complainant is the service
user or whether they are complaining on behalf of someone else. If it is on behalf of
someone else, Adult Care will need to establish if the person has capacity and if they do, a
written consent form from the service user is needed to proceed with the complaint.
The complainant will be advised that they will receive further contact to agree timescales
and finalise the action plan and be provided with a contact number and full name so that
they have a way to follow up if they are unhappy.
rochdale.gov.uk

Page 85

7

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

Written concerns
If the complaint is received in written format, this will passed to the Rochdale Borough
Council Customer Feedback Team as quickly as possible, if the complaint has not been
raised directly with them.
Where a complaint is received in writing or by email, we will attempt to contact you by
telephone to clarify all parts of the complaint and establish your desired outcomes from the
complaint. If we are unable to contact you by phone, we will send you a letter advising you
that it would be preferable to discuss the matter if you are amenable to do so.

Considerations at receipt of concern
Safeguarding
Where a person involved in a complaint is an adult at risk and there is reason to believe that
a person is deliberately or unknowingly causing them harm, or has caused them harm,
consideration must be given to safeguarding implications, both to the person at the centre of
the concerns, and to other adults who are potentially at risk in relation to the concerns.
Harm includes; physical, sexual, psychological, financial and neglect, these can be caused
by an act or omission, or be passive or active in nature.
Where there is any indication that there are safeguarding implications, the concerns will be
dealt with in accordance to the Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults Board’s multiagency policy and procedures - https://www.rbsab.org/ . The appropriate Safeguarding
Adult Manager will be contacted to agree an approach. Where there is an indication that
there is a safeguarding issue, the safeguarding enquiry will take precedence to the
complaint investigation in terms of investigation, timescales and resource implications.

Advocacy
Regulation 3(2) (d) of the Local Authority Social Services and National Health Service
Complaints (England) Regulations 2009 prescribes that complainants receive, so far as is
reasonably practical:


Assistance to enable them to understand the procedure in relation to complaints



Advice on where they may obtain such assistance

If a person is making a complaint, they should be made aware that they can request an
advocate to support them through the complaints process, including at the first meeting. For
matters where advocacy is required, the service user should be provided with details of the
advocacy service as appropriate:


Your Voice Advocacy Service: 01706 341569 (yourvoice@together-uk.org)

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 86

8

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

Liaising with other Rochdale Council services
In some instances it may be necessary to work with other Rochdale Council services if the
complaint cuts across more than one service or if solely relevant to another service.
For other services, the complaint needs to be recorded as received, acknowledged as
received to the complainant, who is then advised it is being passed to the appropriate area.
It should then be forwarded on to the appropriate person who needs to confirm receipt and
acknowledge this to the complainant.

Liaising with other Local Authorities
When a complaint is received about Adult Care Service’s functions relating in part or wholly
to another authority or authorities, contact needs to be made with the equivalent Complaints
Team and the complainant should be made aware that this is the approach.
The complainant’s consent should be sought before details of their complaint are shared.
A copy of the complaint will be sent to the appropriate contact and an agreement made as
to who will look at which parts of the complaint, dependant on the facts and timescales for
responses agreed. This agreement will be recorded and noted in the complaint file. An
agreement should be reached for a joint response where possible.
Once the complaint has been sent to the appropriate contact, the complaint will also be
deemed to have been made to them and responsibility for the response lies with them.

Joint Working Protocol for Health and Adult Social Care
Complaints
With effect from 1 April 2009 these Regulations (as detailed in “Listening, Responding,
Improving” enshrine a duty to co-operate with health partners in relation to complaints that
cut across Health and adult care services.
Where a complaint is received about Adult Care’s functions or functions of any party to the
Joint Protocol (i.e. health partners) after 1 April 2009, the organisation which receives the
complaint will handle the co-ordination of the complaint as outlined in the Joint Protocol.
This means the receiving organisation will approach the relevant organisations and send a
copy of the complaint to the appropriate party or parties immediately in accordance with the
agreed protocol.
The complainant’s consent should be sought before details of their complaint are shared.
Once the complaint has been sent to the appropriate party or parties, the complaint will also
be deemed to have also been made to the other parties.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 87

9

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

Independent social care providers
Where a matter relates to an independent social care provider, complaints will be looked at
in line with this policy and also consideration will be given to the provider’s own complaints
policy.
Where there may be safeguarding concerns, consideration should be given to this as with
any other concern at the initial receipt of information and if appropriate an alert made to the
appropriate service or allocated social care practitioner.
If the matter relates to an independent social care provider providing services under
contract to the Council, the Customer Feedback Team will liaise with the appropriate
Strategic Commissioning Manager to approach the provider.
Where the person has arranged the care and funding themselves Adult Care cannot directly
assist the complainant in their complaint. However, where there is an element of
involvement by Adult Care, there will be an assessment at the start of the complaint to
determine the level of involvement that can be offered and this will form part of the action
plan. The level of involvement will be clearly discussed with (where the matter allows), and
explained to the complainant.
If the person funding their own care is an adult at risk or may have experienced harm,
safeguarding will be considered and appropriate advice given in line with the safeguarding
section of this policy
In order to do this, the Customer Feedback Team will ask the complainant whether they
consent to their details being passed to the appropriate social care provider in line with the
investigation of the matter. In order to complete this, the written consent form must be
completed:


If consent is given, the Customer Feedback Team will then pass information to the
provider surrounding the matter and request that answers are given in response to
the complaint.



If consent is not given the complainant must be informed that this may restrict the
investigation as without details we may not be able to find appropriate records.

The provider will conduct the investigation and feed information back to the Adult Care’s
Strategic Commissioning Team and the Customer Feedback Team.
Wherever relevant a complainant should always receive a co-ordinated and joined-up
response to their complaint, approved by all relevant parties including Adult Care’s Strategic
Commissioning team and the provider.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 88

10

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

Vexatious Complaints
Vexatious complaints can take up a large amount of resources for local authorities and
require special handling. There are two primary considerations when determining if a
complaint is vexatious:


Identification of at which point the complaint becomes vexatious



Ensuring that no material element of the complaint is overlooked

A vexatious complaint can be identified as follows:


The complainant insists that the response does not answer their concerns when the
response specifically does



The complainant insists that they will not accept the findings of an investigation until
they are as they see fit



The complainant focuses on a trivial matter to an extent that is out of all proportion to
the complaint



The complainant consistently raises new concerns that did not appear in the original
complaint in order to keep the correspondence going

The Customer Feedback Team will determine whether a matter could be considered a
vexatious complaint. A discussion must take place with the Council’s Customer Feedback
Lead and the Investigating Officer to determine whether the complaint has any unanswered
concerns within it.
Where it is felt that all reasonable concerns have been thoroughly investigated a decision
may be made to class the complaint as vexatious, this must be approved by the
Adjudicating Officer. Where this decision is made, a full rationale must be written and kept
on file.
The complainant must be advised by the Customer Feedback Team that their concerns
have been investigated thoroughly and answered to the fullest extent possible and that
there is nothing more that can be done and should refer them to the appropriate
Ombudsman if they wish to continue. The complainant is to be informed that any further
correspondence on these points will not be responded to and that correspondence on these
points is at an end.

Aggressive and Malicious Callers
Callers should only be classed as malicious in exceptional circumstances. Where a caller
becomes aggressive, the staff member should refer the caller to the Team Manager. Where
the caller continues to be aggressive or malicious, the caller should be warned that if they
rochdale.gov.uk

Page 89

11

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

continue with this approach, the call could be terminated. If the caller continues, the call
should be terminated.
Where a caller repeatedly calls and is malicious and/or aggressive, they should be warned
that if the pattern of behaviour continues they will be classed as a malicious caller and there
will no longer be an obligation to take the calls. Where a caller is classed as malicious, care
should be taken with any attempts by that person to contact Adult Care and a warning will
be circulated to staff via e-mail. If the pattern continues, consideration should be given by
the Head of Service as to any further steps.

Conversation Recording
Complainants may feel it appropriate to attempt to record conversations however staff
should not be recorded during the investigation of complaints. Where approached by the
public to consent to conversation recording, staff should refuse.
Where a member of staff feels they have reason to believe that they are being recorded they
should question the complainant as to whether they are being recorded. Where the
complainant admits this, they should be warned that if the recording continues the telephone
conversation or home visit will be terminated, if the recording continues terminate the call or
leave.

Complaint Investigation Process
If the complaint outcomes cannot be resolved informally within 24 hours, the complainant
can expect:





Their formal complaint to be acknowledged within 3 working days, which may be
orally or in writing.
To be contacted by the allocated officer to agree the complaint actions points to be
investigated and agree the desired outcomes from the complaint
To be told of the timescales to investigate their complaint and be informed if this
needs to change
A written response to their complaint

Responsible person
The Responsible Person is responsible for ensuring compliance with the Regulations and
that action is taken, where appropriate, following the outcome of a complaint. The
Regulations specify that that this is the Chief Executive.
This can be formally delegated to a person authorised to act on the behalf of the
Responsible Person. This has been done and the Director of Adult Care Services (DASS)
has been authorised to act on behalf of the Responsible Person in this regard.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 90

12

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

Ombudsman
The complainant must be informed that they have the right to take their complaint to the
appropriate Ombudsman, either the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman or the
Parliamentary and Health Services Ombudsman who will determine whether they have the
legal power to investigate the complaint and also whether the injustice is such that it is
appropriate for them to do so.
If the Ombudsman chooses to investigate the complaint, the Ombudsman will then send the
complaint to us and ask for comments and any other information they need. They may also
need to:


Get further information from the complainant, the council, or other people



Examine the Council’s files



Meet the complainant, Council Officers or other people



Visit the site if directly relevant to the complaint

The Ombudsman has the legal power to get evidence from the Council and other people.
During the investigation they will give the complainant a chance to comment on what the
Council has said about the complaint. They will then write to the complainant and the
Council to tell them what the decision is likely to be. At this stage they give the complainant
and the Council a chance to comment or provide any further information they wish to.
When they have made a final decision they will write and explain the reasons and send a
copy of this letter to the department. If the Ombudsman makes any recommendations they
will advise the department and the department will take these forward.
If the complainant disagrees with the outcome of the Ombudsman, there is the option to
complain about their investigation to them. This would then review the methods that have
been used to conduct the investigation and the complainant would be advised of the
outcome.

Learning
At all stages throughout the complaint staff involved in the investigation should monitor the
findings with a critical eye, to identify any faults in the service or investigation and any
improvements that are needed. Customer feedback should inform service delivery and it is
important that complaints are properly evaluated.
Once learning actions have been implemented as agreed, the complainant should be
updated on the changes that have occurred as a result of their approach to Adult Care.
The Customer Feedback Team will be contacted regularly by the Training, Assurance and
Safeguarding Team within Adult Care for information on anonymised learning which has
been taken forward to inform service delivery, in order to report this to senior management.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 91

13

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

Reporting
Analysis of complaints, learning and satisfaction will be undertaken on a quarterly basis and
reported as part of the Training, Assurance and Safeguarding Team quarterly assurance
report to further inform service design. A report needs to be completed on an annual basis,
covering a period of 12 months ending 31st March, detailing complaints received as follows:


The number of complaints Adult Care has received



The number of complaints that were upheld



The number of complaints that have been referred to:
o The Local Commissioner under the Local Government Act 1974
o The Health Service Commissioner under the 1993 Act



Summarise the subject matter of the complaints received



Any matters of general importance arising out of the complaints or the way in which
the complaints were handled



Any matters where action has been taken or is being taken to improve services as a
consequence of these complaints

This annual report must be available to any person on request. Furthermore, information on
complaints and categories of complaints must be provided to the Government each year
within the Self-Assessment Survey for Social Care. This information should be provided to
the Adult Care Performance Officer on request.

Version history
Version
number

Summary of change

Author

1.0

Draft developed

J McLean

30.12.09

2.0

Draft revised

J McLean / C Whitham

15.01.10

3.0

Draft revised – addition of ‘terms’

J McLean

15.01.10

4.0

Version agreed and signed off

J McLean

09.09.10

5.0

Hyperlink amendments

J McLean

17.05.11

6.0

Content update, reformat and hyperlink amendments

F Love-Roberts / C
Whitham

06.05.14

7.0

Care Act 2014 compliant

F Love-Roberts / C
Whitham

01.04.15

8.0

Review, edit and inclusion of Accessible Information
Standards requirements

C Whitham / F LoveRoberts

10.08.16

9.0

Reviewed, updated and proof read

C Whitham / Editorial
Board

13.10.17

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 92

Date

14

Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and Health
Policy

Version
number

Summary of change

Author

10.0

Reviewed, Adult Care Allocated Officers updated

C Whitham / F LoveRoberts

11.0

Reviewed, and updated with minor changes

Juliette Johnson

12.0

Reviewed and updated with major changes to make
policy clearer to the public

Jane Timson

Date
03.05.2018
10.10.19
02.11.2021

Review
This policy will be reviewed annually.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 93

15

Agenda Item 8
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

25th November 2021
Cabinet Member for
Children’s Services and
Education
Fay Davies
Public

Need for Primary School Places 2022-25
Executive Summary
1.1

Nationwide there was a notable drop in applications for Primary school for the
September 2021 intake. Birth rate data from 2016/17 indicated that Rochdale
should have a peak in births for this intake, similar to that seen for the 2017/18
reception year intake. However, along with national trends, early indications
are that Reception intakes have decreased and they are forecasted to
continue to do so for the next few years. It is thought that school starts have
been affected by both the pandemic (by stopping families from moving) and
Brexit.

1.2

Inflows of pupils arriving into the borough after the start of Reception intake,
and in higher year groups, have been higher than ever since January 2021,
leading to significant pressures in older primary school year groups. These
‘in-year’ school applications plateaued towards the end of the 2019/20 due to
the pandemic, but have bounced back up to be above previous levels.
Recommendation

2.1

Approve the opening of consultations for the provision of two new schools to
be provided via the Free School Presumption route for Heywood South and
Rochdale South.

2.2

Approve the bulge class at Hollin Primary School in Middleton for 2022 and
2023 school intakes as required.

2.3

Approve consultation with Middleton stakeholders to seek further temporary
capacity for 2023/24 with the expectation of expansion of the Primary school
estate through the Prescribed Alterations procedure.

2.4

Note that falling birth rates nationally and in some areas within the borough
(Rochdale NW) may require removal of some Primary school capacity. Any

Page 94

consultation or decisions on this will be put before Cabinet for approval at a
later date.
Reason for Recommendation
3.1

The council has a statutory duty to provide education and school places to all
school aged children living in the borough and consequently has a duty to
plan adequately for predicted pupil numbers.

3.2

Current housing development plans along with possible housing allocations
defined in the Places For Everyone, PFE (currently still under consultation)
dictate that pupil numbers in Rochdale may continue to grow in some localities
and plans must be put in place to create the needed school capacity.

3.3

Drops in applications for Reception intake following national trends have
started to affect forecasts for some area, Rochdale NW in particular.
Key Points for Consideration

4.1

Heywood
Heywood appears to have suffered a drop in applications along with national
trends. It is not obvious whether this is temporary or more permanent issue.
New housing completions in Heywood have decreased recently but 1200 new
houses coming forward at the junction 19 ‘South Heywood’ development will
require a new school to be delivered through the Free School Presumption
route. The estimated new pupils from this number of houses is 300. Timing of
the new school will be crucial to maintain sufficient places as the housing
comes forward in south Heywood. A consultation process on starting the
Presumption process needs to be run to help inform the required school
specification document, this is not the formal statutory consultation required
to be undertaken under section 10 of the Academies Act 2010.

4.2
Reception
Places
Needed
Plans

Future
Issues

4.3

4.4

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

53 spare

35 spare

67 spare

78 spare

Discontinue
bulge class at
Harwood Park

Consideration must be taken on how much spare
capacity is too much. Monitoring of the rate of
building and pupils from the South Heywood
development will inform any decision to reduce
spare school capacity.
New housing coming forward in South Heywood
will require a new 1 form entry school.

In-year new arrivals for Key Stage 2 have been an issue and Woodland
Primary created an additional year 4 class in 2020.
Middleton
Forecasts show that in Middleton additional places are needed from 2022/23
to 2024/25. Middleton has high levels of in-flow and significant shortages of

Page 95

places are expected without additional capacity. During the 2020/21 academic
year 34 additional pupils arrived on-roll in key stage 1 classes after the start
of the school year just in Middleton.
4.5

Reception
Places
Needed
Plans
Future Issues

4.6

4.7

4.8

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

10 places needed

51 places needed

5 place spare

40 spare

Provide a second and third year of
temporary bulge classes at Hollin Primary
Permanent expansion of school may be needed in central
Middleton.

In September 2018 and 2019 Reception year started with 62 and 85 spare
places respectively. This amount of spare capacity caused significant issues
with school financing locally. There are now 28 spare places in the 2018 intake
and 55 spare places in the 2019 intake. It is important that sufficient classes
are created at key stage 1 as class size legislation means that there is a limit
to the number of places that can be offered in each class. Forecasts of in-year
growth show that the 2019 intake, mentioned above, will have insufficient
places by 2024/25 (in what will be year 5), with the 2018 intake having
insufficient places in the 2023/24 year 5 class. The 2020 intake will have
insufficient places by the start of the 2022/23 academic year. The table below
shows almost all year groups in Middleton will have insufficient places going
forward.
MIDDLETON
FORECAST

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

Year 1 places
Expected pupils

705
689

675
716

675
758

675
700

Year 2 places
Expected pupils

675
688

705
711

675
739

675
782

Year 3 places
Expected pupils

675
650

675
715

705
739

675
768

Year 4 places
Expected pupils

705
695

675
664

675
730

705
754

Year 5 places
Expected pupils

675
675

705
709

675
677

675
744

Year 6 places
Expected pupils

720
699

675
686

705
720

675
689

Pennine
For the 2021 Reception intake for north Pennine the underlying birth rate was
high, but schools appear to have under-recruited considerably. This could be
due to national issues mentioned previously, or local issues. Local issues
include the rebuilding programme at Littleborough Primary school and the
continued lack of Secondary school places. Historically north Pennine is a net
importer of children, with more children arriving in Reception than are born

Page 96

locally. There is an expectation that, when the Littleborough Primary re-build
project is complete, and the new Secondary school is open, that families will
have confidence to apply for school places in this area again.
4.9

Pennines S Pennines N

Extra
Reception
Places Needed
Plans
Future Issues
Extra
Reception
Places Needed
Plans/ Future
issues

2022-23

2023-24 2024-25

2025-26

58 spare

59 spare

69 spare

62 spare

Spare capacity will be kept under review, but temporary issues are
thought to be impacting current applications and applications for the
2022/23 year will be monitored closely.
Littleborough Primary new build school and the new Secondary
school, due to be opened in 2023/24, will impact on the desirability of
places in this area. New housing is also coming forward.
11 spare

34 spare

24 spare

29 spare

Plans will remain under review

Rochdale
In the NE/NW area the combined excess of places is a concern, however
4.10 applications from families new to Rochdale are an issue. New applications for
places ‘in-year’ tend to be in the Rochdale NE and central areas and numbers
of new applications for school places through the in-year process were larger
last year than any year previously despite the ongoing pandemic (figure 1a
and 1b below).

Figure 1a: The last 4 years of data on annual rates of applications for new school places from families new to the
borough.

Page 97

Figure 1b: The last 4 years of data on annual rates of applications for new school places from families new to the UK.

NW and NE Rochdale

4.11

4.12

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

Extra
Recepti
on
Places
Needed

8 spare (NE)
59 spare (NW)

53 spare (NE)
47 spare (NW)

27 spare (NE)
58 spare (NW)

39 spare (NE)
72 spare (NW)

Plans/
Future
Issues

NE area: Spare capacity will be reviewed, however high in-year
admissions in NE Rochdale mean that spare capacity needed to
accommodate in year moves.
NW area: Spare capacity in Rochdale NW is too high

In year applications in the Rochdale NE area are forecast to show schools
filling to capacity (see table below). Some of these children will be offered
places in the Rochdale NW area as travel to school distance will be within the
statutory distance.

4.13
ROCHDALE NE
FORECAST

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

Year 1 places
Expected pupils

429
431

429
437

429
391

429
418

Year 2 places
Expected pupils

429
423

429
445

429
450

429
403

Year 3 places
Expected pupils

429
403

429
433

429
455

429
461

Year 4 places
Expected pupils

429
422

429
405

429
436

429
458

Year 5 places
Expected pupils

459
444

429
431

429
414

429
445

Year 6 places
Expected pupils

429
431

459
456

429
443

429
426

4.14

Page 98

In the south and central areas of Rochdale, underlying birth rates show a small
peak for 2023/24 before declining in 2025/26. In-flows of children into the
central area continue to be challenging, with schools being asked to take
additional children in higher year classes. Housing developments in the south
of the area have also impacted on the sufficiency of places. Timing of new
housing developments and creation of sufficient places is going to be an issue
going forward in the SW area and current forecasts of spare capacity will need
to be reviewed. Housing plans under the Places for Everyone indicate an
additional 1680 houses may come forward over the next 15 years. A new
school will be needed depending on the speed of arrival of new housing and
a consultation on this will need to be run.

C and SW Rochdale

4.15

4.16

Extra
Recepti
on
Places
Needed
Plans
Future
Issues

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

33 spare (C)
42 spare (SW)

22 spare (C)
23 spare (SW)

32 spare (C)
36 spare (SW)

48 spare (C)
42 spare (SW)

Spare capacity in the central zone will be kept under review but large
numbers of in-year applications requires sufficient capacity
Additional housing developments in the south means a new school will be
needed in the area in the long term. A new school will need to be created
through the Presumption route.

Summary
I.
Start consultation on Presumption route for Heywood and Rochdale
SW new schools.
II.

Extra capacity is needed in Middleton and the bulge class at Hollin
will be continued and more capacity sought for 2023 which may
involve school expansion.

III.

Investigate options for removing capacity in NW Rochdale if and
when required.

4.17 Free School Presumption
The Education Act 2011 changed the arrangements for establishing new
schools and introduced section 6A (the ‘free school presumption’) of the
Education and Inspections Act 2006 which requires that, where a local
authority identifies the need for a new school in its area, it must seek proposals
to establish an academy (free school) (See link in Section 8 below).
4.18
The presumption process requires local authorities to seek proposals to
establish a free school where they have identified the need for a new school
in their area.
4.19
Section 19 of the guidance, The free school presumption Departmental advice
for local authorities and new school proposers, states “If a local authority is
running a presumption competition, it can withdraw from the process if it
determines that the need for a new school will be met by other means, or that
the need for a new school no longer exists”.
4.20

Page 99

Under the presumption route the local authority is responsible for providing
the site for the new school and for delivering the capital programme for
building the new school. The local authority is also responsible for meeting
the associated capital and pre/post-opening revenue costs. Basic need capital
funding is provided so that local authorities can provide the places that they
need, including through new presumption schools.
4.21
The decision on all new free school proposals lies with the Secretary of State.

4.22

Alternatives Considered
Alternatives are constantly under review and any impacts of the current
pandemic on house building rates or timing of new developments will have
knock on effects on school capacity.
Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

The costs associated with co-ordinating admission arrangements are met
from the Dedicated Schools Grant.

5.2

Where applicable, schools offering additional pupil places to meet the LA’s
statutory need may also be eligible for additional revenue funding from the
Dedicated Schools Grant. The policy and funding available for basic need
growth has to be agreed with Schools Forum.

5.3

Schools are funded based on the number of pupils. Whilst is it acknowledged
that a school will have some vacant places, a high number of vacant places
in a single year group created if pupils do not materialise as forecast will have
an adverse effect on a school’s funding. This can be managed in the short
term through the application of the Growth Fund policy but it is not sustainable
longer term.

5.4

The local authority is required to pay all costs associated with setting up
schools through the Free School Presumption route. Approval for costs
associated with providing any new schools via this route, both capital and
revenue costs, will be sought following consultation with stakeholders when a
suggested opening date is agreed.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 The application of pupil place planning arrangements contributes to the Council
Business Plan in ensuring an effective allocation process for school
admissions. The council has a statutory duty to offer a school place to every
child living in the borough and must manage the schools estate to meet the
predicted need.

Page 100

6.2 For any new school needed the Council does not have under its direct control
the legal mechanisms to create new schools and must, under the Academies
Act 2010 and Education Act 2011, seek Department for Education approved
academy trust providers to provide the schools. Guidance from the DfE, for delivery of a school, using the Presumption will be followed when appropriate
6.3 The financial risks are covered in the Costs and Budget Summary section
above.
Consultation
7.1

Consultation on opening of new schools through the Free School
Presumption route as detailed above.

7.2

Any plans requiring Prescribed Alterations to schools will follow the statutory
process including consultation.

Background Papers

Place of Inspection

8 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
. attachment_data/file/844346/Free_school_presumption_051119.pdf

For Further Information Contact:

,

Page 101

Appendix 1: The Need for Primary School Places 2022-25
Heywood
Until 2019/20 the number of reception pupils arriving in Reception classes had been
significantly higher than the number being born in the area (figure 1). In September
2020 pupil numbers started dropping and September 2021 numbers look to have
dropped again. This reflects the significant drops found in other local authorities in
both Greater Manchester and nation-wide. In Heywood it may also be linked to a
decrease in new house completions. Current forecasts show a peak for 2023/24 with
intakes decreasing following birth rates through to 2025/26.

Figure 1: Heywood Reception intake forecast
The predicted spare capacity in Reception class is expected to grow to 2025/26
(figure 1 & figure 2). Previous bulge classes created at Harwood Park Primary
School will be removed.

Figure 2: Predicted Reception Places and Expected Pupils for Heywood

Page 102

The number of Reception class places currently available in Heywood schools in
September 2021 is set out in the table 1:
School
Places School
Places School
Places
Heap Bridge
25
St Joseph's RC
60
Hopwood
60
Our Lady & St
St Michael's
30
Harwood Park
90
30
Paul's RC
CE VA
St Margaret's
30
St Luke's CE VC
60
CE VA
Woodland
90
All Souls CE VC
30
Table 1: Number of Reception places available Heywood
Middleton
Middleton reception pupil numbers are due to peak again in 2023/24 and numbers of
pupils coming from new housing developments are increasing in the area. Figure 3
also shows school census intake numbers and on roll numbers at the end of the
academic year.

Figure 3: Middleton Reception Intake forecast data
There is a predicted shortage of Reception capacity from 2022/23 to 2024/25, and a
continuation of the bulge class in Hollin Primary is needed. Further additional
capacity for 2023/24 will also be needed with a permanent expansion possibly
needed at a Middleton school.(figure 3).

Page 103

Figure 4: Reception Places and Expected Pupil numbers for Middleton
The number of Reception class places currently available in Middleton schools in
September 2021 is set out in the table 2:
School
St John
Fisher RC
Hollin

Places
60

School
Middleton Parish
CE VA
Parkfield

Boarshaw

60

Elm Wood

30

Places School
60

St Peter's RC

30

30

Alkrington
St Thomas More
RC
St Michael's CE
VA

60

60

Little Heaton CE
30
VC
St Mary's RC
60
St Gabriel's CE VC
30
Table 2: Reception Places available Middleton
Bowlee Park

120

Places

45
30

Pennine
The applications to schools in north Pennines have dropped significantly (figure 5). It
is believed this is due to local factors; including a temporary drop in the number of
new house completions, the rebuilding of Littleborough Primary and the delay in the
new Secondary school. The current spare capacity will be kept under review.
Schools in south Pennines have in the past seen intakes closer to the underlying
birth rates and there the current capacity is sufficient to meet the underlying birth
rates (figure 6). Capacity will be kept under review.

Page 104

Figure 5: Reception Intake forecast for Pennines North

Figure 6: Reception Intake forecast for Pennines South

Page 105

Figure 7: Places and Expected Pupils Pennines North

Figure 8: Places and Expected Pupils Pennines South
The number of Reception class places currently available in Pennine schools in
September 2021 is set out in the following table:
School
Places School
Places School
Places
Stansfield Hall
St Andrew's
20
60
Moorhouse
30
CE VC
CE VC
Littleborough
60
Smithy Bridge
60
Crossgates
45
Holy Trinity CE
Milnrow Parish CE
30
Hamer
45
30
VA
VA
Kentmere
St Mary's RC
30
45
Newhey
45
Academy
Alice Ingham
St Thomas' CE
St James' CE F
30
24
21
RC
VA
Table 3: Pennines Schools Places

Page 106

Rochdale
Rochdale Township includes almost half of children educated in Rochdale Borough.
For school place planning purposes this has been split up into four areas as shown
in figure 9 below. Data is shown for two zones; North West and North East Rochdale
combined and Central and South West Rochdale combined.

Figure 9: Rochdale Borough Primary Planning Areas

Page 107

Figure 10: Forecast for North East and North West areas of Rochdale
Township.
A peak in the combined area of Rochdale NW and NE Reception classes intakes
due to birth rates occurred for 2020 intake and the current forecast shows similar
levels of need for 2022/23, before dropping for 2023/24. Underlying birth rates in NE
Rochdale indicate that current cohorts are due to peak again in 2024/25. In the NW
Rochdale area births numbers have dropped from 322 for 2019/20 intake and will
reach 284 for 2025/26 intake. This suggests a current level of spare capacity in NW
Rochdale that maybe unsustainable. Any reduction in PAN will undergo a full
consultation process as required.

Figure 11: Spaces and Expected pupils in North-east Rochdale

Page 108

Figure 12: Spaces and expected pupils North-west Rochdale
The birth rate in the SW and Central Rochdale area has zigzagged for several years
and pupil numbers have not followed this trend. There is currently sufficient capacity
predicted over the combined area although, as shown in Figure 13, the number onroll in Reception class increased by 33 pupils during last year in the area due to the
very high rates of in-year applications.

Figure 13: Reception Forecast for Rochdale Central and South-West areas.
Rochdale Central and SW Reception classes are forecasted to have spare capacity
for the next 4 years (figure 13 & figure 14). Spare capacity needs to be maintained
because of in year applications centrally and new housing coming forward in the SW
area.

Page 109

Figure 14: spaces and Expected pupils in the Central Rochdale area

Figure 15: Spaces and Expected pupils in the South-west Rochdale area
The number of Reception class places currently available in Rochdale Township
schools in September 2021 is set out in the following table:
School
Places School
Places School
Places
Healey F
30
Whittaker Moss
60
Marland Hill
60
Shawclough
60
St Vincent's RC
60
Brimrod
30
All Saints CE
Bamford
Ashfield Valley
30
60
30
VA
Academy
Greenbank
60
Belfield
60
St Mary's CE VC
30
St Patrick's
Sacred Heart
Sandbrook
45
30
90
RC
RC
Heybrook
90
Broadfield
60
Holy Family RC
30
Meanwood
St John's RC
St Edward's CE
60
30
52
VC
Norden
Deeplish
Castleton
60
60
60
Academy
Spotland
St Peter's CE
St Gabriel's RC
60
60
30
VC
Caldershaw
Lowerplace
St John'sCE
30
90
15
T'ham

Page 110

Table 4: Places in Rochdale Township in September 2018

Page 111

Agenda Item 9
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

25th November 2021
Cabinet Member for
Children’s Services and
Education
Fay Davies
Public

Secondary School Places 2022 - 2025
Executive Summary
1.1

The new Edgar Wood Academy has opened for 2021 year 7 intake in
Middleton. The second new mainstream Secondary school for Rochdale
borough, which will be run by the Star Academies trust, is expected to open
in 2023 in Littleborough although timelines will not be set until planning
permission is approved. The new Secondary SEN school, which will be run
by the New Bridge Trust, is now scheduled to be open in 2023.

1.2

This report covers details of the new school and capacity of school places in
the secondary school sector.
Recommendation

2.1

To note the delivery timescales and spaces in the three new schools; The
Edgar Wood Academy in Middleton, the Littleborough Star Leadership
Academy and the Heywood SEN school.

2.2

To note that current pupil forecasts, and timelines on the new schools,
indicate the council’s ability to meet its statutory duty. This is dependent on
current timelines indicated by the Department for Education’s Capital and
Free School teams working on the new schools.

2.3

To note on-going inflow of pupils, that has increased since the start of the
easing of the pandemic lockdown, are causing significant challenges to
Secondary schools that are at or close to capacity.

Reason for Recommendation

Page 112

3.1

The council has a statutory duty to offer every pupil living in the borough, who
applies, a Secondary school place. Where the council offers a school place
that is over the statutory “safe walking distance” for the age of that child the
council is required to provide free school transport. Because bus transport in
the area is provided through Transport for Greater Manchester, any child
offered a school place, which is over the statutory distance criteria, is offered
a free bus pass that is provided from council funds. The council receives no
central government funding for school bus transport.

3.2

The council does receive Basic Need funding to provide additional school
places for both permanent and temporary school building expansions and
bulge classes. The allocation of Basic Need funding from central government
is reported annually to the council Cabinet and the report this year was
approved on 31st March 2021.
Key Points for Consideration

4.1

Contingency plans for Secondary school intake were last reported to Cabinet
on 29th September 2020. For 2019 and 2020 intakes additional needed
capacity was delivered by existing schools taking bulge classes, which were
funded through Basic Need where capital works were required.

4.2

For 2021 intake the severe Secondary school place shortage was local to the
Middleton area and some surplus was forecast for Rochdale central schools.
The difficulty in travelling times from Middleton to Rochdale centre meant that
offering surplus places in Rochdale centre to families in Middleton was not
deemed a viable option. Consequently council officers worked closely with
the Altus Trust and the Department for Education to produce plans and
contingencies to deliver the needed places in a temporary location. Additional
bulge places were also offered at four existing schools.

4.3

In September 2021 the Edgar Wood Academy opened with 4 forms of entry,
120 pupil, capacity at a temporary site at Hopwood Hall College Campus in
Middleton. The Permanent site is due to open at a site close to Bowlee on
Heywood Old Road, Middleton, for September 2022.

4.4

In September 2021 Wardle Academy also had a major building extension to
provide 100 additional places; 50 for 2021 and 50 for 2022 intakes.
Heywood and Middleton

4.5

Because of the usual travel of pupils between Heywood and Middleton these
areas are considered together. Available places and forecasts for pupils
numbers are shown in figure 1 showing the expectation currently that schools
in the Heywood and Middleton area will be at capacity despite the opening of
the Edgar Wood Academy.

4.6

Page 113

4.7

Figure 1: Forecast for Places and expected pupils in the combined Heywood and Middleton area

Admission numbers for the next intake year are shown in the table below.
School
Pupil Admission Number for 2022
Newhouse Academy
210
Holy Family RC & CE College
150
Middleton Technology School
270
Cardinal Langley RC High School
210
St. Anne's Academy
180
Edgar Wood Academy
180
Total
1200
Table 1 Places at Heywood and Middleton schools for 2022

4.8

Pennine and Rochdale
There has been a shortage of places in the popular Pennine Secondary
schools for some time. It is expected that additional capacity created at
Wardle Academy for 2021 and 2022 intakes will be filled. In the combined
Pennine and Rochdale areas there is, on average, a 9% drop in pupils
attending Rochdale LA maintained schools between year 6 and year 7. This
is predominantly pupils choosing to travel to private, independent, grammar
schools, or schools in other local authority areas. This drop in pupils does
change year to year between 8% and 11% and therefore out of borough
factors can cause inaccuracy in the forecast.

4.9

Page 114

4.10

Figure 2: Secondary Intake forecast for Pennine and Rochdale

The forecast shows insufficient places available in existing schools if the new
Littleborough Star Academy does not open for 2023, but the new school, on
current forecasts, should be able to accommodate the forecasted number of
4.11 pupils from 2023/24 to 2026/27.
School
Pupil Admission Number for 2022
Hollingworth Academy
270
Wardle Academy
290
St.Cuthbert's RC High
240
Kingsway Park High
270
Matthew Moss High
240
Oulder Hill School
300
Falinge Park High School
270
Total
1880
Table 2: Places at Pennine and Rochdale schools for 2022

4.12 Other considerations
In-year applications for places either after the start of year 7 or in higher year
groups have been rising for some years in both the Primary sector and
Secondary Sector.

4.13

Page 115

4.14
In total in the 2020/21 academic year almost 300 additional pupils were placed
in Rochdale schools after the start to term. This does cause significant
difficulties, as those additional pupils mostly arrive into the same few schools
4.15 that carry spaces at the start of term.
Many of our Secondary schools are now at capacity in some or all year
groups. Last year Secondary schools, accepted on-roll after the October
school census, an additional 88 secondary pupils (net). While this is
something the borough has seen before at Primary level, it has never
happened previously at Secondary. This includes 26 pupils arriving after the
4.16 start of their final year of school (year 11).
As detailed above Rochdale sees a net loss of children at Secondary
transition and this has varied year to year depending on factors outside the
borough. In 2019 the popular Oldham Crompton House school completed a
major extension and increased its intake by 50%. Next year (2022) a new
school will open in Oldham offering additional places.
4.17 Heywood SEN School
On the 29th October 2019 Cabinet approved the release of the site at
Heywood Sports Village for use for the new SEN school being delivered by
4.18 the Department for Education.
The New Bridge Trust, who run special and autism specialist schools in
Oldham were awarded the contract to run the new school and Rochdale RANs
service are now working with the trust to integrate the New Bridge offer into
4.19 the suit of services provided within Rochdale.
Timescales on the delivery of the new SEN school currently indicate planning
permission will be sought before the end of 2021, with the new school opening
4.20 for September 2023.

Page 116

The New Bridge Trust have indicated that once the school opens a school
naming competition will be run and the young people attending the school will
be asked to choose the new school name.
4.21 Alternatives Considered
Alternatives are constantly under review and any impacts of the current
pandemic on house building rates or timing of new developments will have
knock on effects on school capacity.
Costs and Budget Summary
5.1

The costs associated with co-ordinating admission arrangements are met
from the Dedicated Schools Grant.

5.2

Where applicable, schools offering additional pupil places to meet the LA’s
statutory need may also be eligible for additional revenue funding from the
Dedicated Schools Grant. The policy and funding available for basic need
growth has to be agreed with Schools Forum

5.3

Schools are funded based on the number of pupils. Whilst is it acknowledged
that a school will have some vacant places, a high number of vacant places
in a single year group created if pupils do not materialise as forecast will have
an adverse effect on a school’s funding. This can be managed in the short
term through the application of the Growth Fund policy but it is not sustainable
longer term.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

The application of pupil place planning arrangements contributes to the
Council Business Plan in ensuring an effective allocation process for school
admissions. The council has a statutory duty to offer a school place to every
child living in the borough and must manage the schools estate to meet the
predicted need.

6.2

Provision of sufficient Secondary school places, within the new school
buildings that are being delivered through the centrally managed Free school
programme, are not under control of the local authority, but because the
statutory duty to provide places resides with the local authority then
consequently the local authority needs to be ready to work with local partners
to meet the needs of its residents if required.

6.3

The financial risks are covered in the Costs and Budget Summary section
above.
Consultation

Page 117

7.1

In order to open the new Littleborough school the Star Academies trust need
to run a statutory consultation to seek stakeholder views.

7.2

Any additional places created through building works are required to go
through the statutory planning consultation process.

Background Papers

Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact:

Fay Davies, ,
fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 118

Agenda Item 10
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

25th November 2021
Cabinet Member for
Getting A Good Start,
Cabinet Member for
Healthy Lives, Cabinet
Member for Social Care
and Ageing Well
Ben Jorgensen
Public

Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2021/2022:
Quarter 2 Performance Update
Executive Summary
1.

To report progress at the end of Quarter 2 (1st July – 30th September)
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Adult Care Directorate
Plan 2021-22, Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22 and Public
Health Directorate Plan 2021-22.
Recommendation

2.

Members are asked to review the information contained within the report
and the appendices.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework,
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be
reported to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each
quarter.

3.1

The Quarter 2 progress reports for the Adult Care Directorate, Children’s
Services and Public Health Directorate are attached at Appendix 1, 2 and 3
respectively. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in
accordance with the following criteria:

3.2

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control
Green: Action completed by the target date
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

Page 119

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red,
amber or purple.
Key Points for Consideration
4.

Adult Care Directorate Plan 2021-22 Progress
Performance Overview

4.1

67% (9) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2021-22 are ongoing.
25% (3) actions are now complete. One further action isn’t fully complete
and the action due date has now passed. The chart below shows the overall
performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of
Quarter 2.

4.2

The action that isn’t fully complete and the due date has passed (Amber)
relates to:
 To work towards a new approach to the joint management (health
and social care) of people with complex issues around autism and
Learning difficulties
Quarter 2 Summary

4.3

An interim scheme of delegation is being produced in line with the corporate
constitution, financial regulations and standing orders. Currently the scheme
of delegation is undergoing a minor review to ensure responsibilities per role
are correct and current (as there has been some staff turnover), this will
then be submitted again to Committee and Constitutional Services for
agreement. A larger scale review will then commence once the constitution

Page 120

of the council is reviewed (this piece of work is being led by Committee and
Constitutional Services).
4.4

As part of the action for the Community Mental Health national framework to
be implemented in conjunction with commissioning, plans have been
developed to modernise community mental health services. The mental
health mandate provides a high level plan and includes specific sections on
crisis development, dementia and community mental health transformation.
Project plans are ongoing with the view to recruit a living well manager.
Recovery and reablement are now members of the living well design group
and additionally a primary care practitioner post has gone out to advert.
Review against the framework is to be undertaken in quarter 3.

4.5

A baseline audit has now been completed for the dementia action plan
which will comply with GM dementia standards. Next steps are to review
against the GM standards and benchmark against the prime ministers action
points; a refreshed action plan is now in place. There is a clear vision going
forward along with extended the membership of the delivery group so all
relevant people are now involved.

4.6

To prepare the locality and all partners for the implementation of Protection
of Liberty safeguards, an audit of stakeholder preparedness has
commenced. The project is currently being scoped and a person identified to
coordinate a programme of work to enable the service to be prepared for
liberty of safeguarding. In terms of an implementation plan a code of
practice has still not been published.
Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22 Progress
Performance Overview

4.7

75% (12) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2021-22 are
ongoing. Two actions are not fully complete and the action due date has
now passed; a further two actions have now been completed. The chart
below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan
targets at the end of Quarter 2.

Page 121

4.8

The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due date has passed (Amber)
relate to:
 Develop and implement a refreshed whole family Early Help strategy
that incorporates School Readiness and aligns to the SEND Strategy
and wider council prevention strategy
 Review Early Help & Early Years locality team pathways to ensure
effective transitions and support with EHASH, locality partners and
Children’s Social Care
Quarter 2 Summary

4.9

As part of the action to improve access to the right service at the right time;
the EHASH Strategic board is continuing to meet on a monthly basis and is
well represented by partner agencies. There has been directive to clinically
focus upon key themes relating to EHASH with partner agencies in order to
understand the demand and areas that can be collectively improved upon.
The group have started to devise partnership deep dive audit points and
hold audit meetings with key partners in order to provide a transparent
overview; this then is fed back down to agencies in order to address specific
areas of findings. Collectively the board is considering the overall
improvement of service offer and delivery across the demographic as a
collective partnership. The EHASH board will continue to assist in
developing and strengthening the Front Door Model of Rochdale with
partners making valuable contribution to its continued journey.

4.10 In order to review information and advice services for multi-agency
practitioners in relation to Early Help and establish pathways with locality
teams prior to EHASH new Locality Advisory Boards have been developed.
First meetings of the boards will be held in September '21 as planned.
Information from the strategic school readiness and FSM/Early help board
will feed into the Locality Advisory Boards and Family Panels to support a
multi-agency approach and accountability for supporting families at a locality
level. Now that the advisory boards have been established the family panel
will be next to be rolled out and it is expected that this will be done by
December.
4.11 In order to ensure the voice of young people is promoted and listened to
across service development and within provision there is focus to enhance
the offer of Member of Youth Parliament / Children’s Champion / Cared for
Ambassadors and increase the numbers of young people participating in
voice projects. Cabinet young people this quarter have been involved in
national, regional and local campaigns around climate change with
discussions with key decision makers. Additionally a Student Relationship
Champion Programme was launched in May 2021.
4.12 A range of development opportunities are being delivered across the
directorate in order to support the action to continue to provide development
opportunities for employees from black, Asian and minority ethnic
communities. There is active engagement by children’s services in the range

Page 122

of council leadership programmes, with colleagues from black and minority
ethnic communities attending. There is a continuous focus on addressing
cultural issues through anti-racist training delivered to large cohorts of
children’s services staff members on 12th July and 9th September, as part
of a rolling programme across the directorate. The council’s new black and
minority ethnic network meeting launched on 26th July, was widely
promoted within children’s services and the children’s services. A BAME
focus group has met twice with the director and assistant director during Q2
to check out whether developmental opportunities and building an inclusive
culture continue to make progress.
Public Health & Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2021-22 Progress
Performance Overview
4.13 67% (10) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2021-22 are
ongoing. Three actions are not fully complete and the action due date has
now passed; a further two actions have now been completed. The chart
below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan
targets at the end of Quarter 2.

4.14 The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due date has passed (Amber)
relate to:
 Work collaboratively to understand and prepare for Public Health in
the context of the Integration and Innovation, and Public Health
Proposals expected in due course
 Provide oversight and delivery where required, of COVID testing
programme across the borough
 Deliver enhanced contact tracing model
Quarter 2 Summary

Page 123

4.15 A senior intelligence lead has been recruited in order to develop an
intelligence network to support strategic and tactical intelligence
requirements within a new system architecture. The new appointee will start
in Q3. A reorganisation of the intelligence function is taking place and a
paper is being developed to advocate for more 'investigation space' to be in
the system. Meetings are taking place between Public Health and LCO to
formulate best practice and to agree how to move forward in order to bring
together a network, agree ways of working and develop work plan aligned
with priorities. The network will follow existing LCO structures and will
initially focus on the development of Mandate Dashboards and programme
plans.
4.16 Inequalities continue to be a challenge across all elements of the Covid-19
Vaccination programme. An intensive programme of work is underway to
work to address this. A Health Inequalities Plan has been refreshed and
reviewed quarterly. The plan was last updated in September with input from
the group members. The group continues to meet fortnightly. A new Public
Health Outbreak Officer now supports and leads on delivery of the plan.
Dedicated task and finish groups have been set up to deliver targeted work
to reduce inequalities.
4.17 The Covid-19 testing programme is ongoing with community testing
continuing until the end of December albeit operating hours and number of
staff have been reduced to ensure that costs are kept within the DHSC rate
card. A 3 month plan (Oct-Dec) for the ongoing sustainable model of
community testing has been agreed and is in operation. We await further
info from DHSC about testing post December but it is likely that an exit
strategy will begin during Dec until end Mar 22.
4.18 As part of the action to deliver an enhanced contact tracing model a local
enhanced contact tracing model has been implemented that delivers Tier 1
and Tier 2 contact tracing service. The launch of new interactive contact
tracing service has been postponed until September. The new service is an
essential aspect of the enhanced model and the delay has pushed forward
the implementation of some key elements within our service.
Alternatives Considered
4.19 Not applicable

Costs and Budget Summary
5.

None
Risk and Policy Implications

Page 124

6.

Risk and policy implications have been considered such as:
•
•
•
•

Equality Implications
Covid 19 implications
Legal / Health and Safety Implications
Human Resources Implications

Consultation
7.

Not required
Background Papers

8.

Place of Inspection

Appendix 1 - Adult Care
Directorate Plan 2021-22 Q2

Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale OL16 1XU

Appendix 2 – Children’s
Services Directorate Plan 202122 Q2
Appendix 3 – Public Health
Directorate Plan 2021-22 Q2

For Further Information Contact:

Ben Jorgensen, ,
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 125

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

AC2101 Support the delivery of integrated neighbourhood working

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

AC2101.A

To further develop a partnership approach and work to a set of guiding principles which evidence
good neighbourhood working (complete actions in Project plan LCO exec group project sponsors)

Status

% Complete

55%

% Complete

31 March 2022



80%

31 March 2022



80%

31 March 2022



40%



40%

Project board is established, however a new wider police neighbourhood board will take over most of this activity.
AC2101.B

To have four co -located Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INT) /Neighbourhood teams

Page 126

Plans have been amended, however expectation we will still have 4 teams by end of financial term.
To initialise formal links with Primary Care Networks and housing

AC2101.D

With Pennine Care to implement a neighbourhood offer around MH service provision (found in
Neighbourhood LCO project)

AC2101.C

The expectation is we will have housing links by march and it is expected to make formal links with primary care networks.
31 March 2022

The interface with mental health is being developed and progress is being made to direct links between secondary mental health (CMHT) and neighbourhood INTs.
AC2101.E

Engage in at least 1 public consultation exercise around aspects of neighbourhood working in each
neighbourhood (contained in team plans)

31 March 2022



35%

Still developments to be made around this, although teams are expected to complete by March 22. Work has been hampered by ongoing Covid restrictions.

AC2102 Undertake (with other directorates) test of change for new prevention model for vulnerable
adults

31 March 2022



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 7

63%

% Complete

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Due Date

Status

30 June 2021



100%

30 September 2021



90%

31 March 2022



0%

Page 127

Action Plan

AC2103 Publish and enact new Scheme of Delegation, in line with the corporate constitution, financial
regulations and standing orders

31 March 2022



90%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2103.A

Review and embed within all service protocols, guidance and procedures

31 March 2022



AC2101.A

Start test of change – new model tested

% Complete

This has begun and the programme of work complete has been enacted
AC2101.B

Review test of change

Paper being prepared for leadership due to go end of Sept 21.
AC2101.C

Implement new model

Remains the same as Q1. Implementation not due until March 2022

% Complete
90%

The interim SoD is currently undergoing a minor review to ensure responsibilities per role are correct and current (as there has been some staff turnover), this will then
be submitted again to Committee and Constitutional Services for agreement. A larger scale review will then commence once the constitution of the council is reviewed
(this piece of work is being led by Committee and Constitutional Services).

AC2104 Community Mental Health national framework to be implemented In conjunction with
commissioning (monitored via Mental Health partnership board and LCO mandate

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2104.A

Develop a plan to modernise community mental health services

30 April 2021



Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 7

53%

% Complete
100%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

Mental health mandate provides a high level plan and includes specific sections on crisis development, dementia and community mental health transformation
AC2104.B

Develop the project plan

31 October 2021



60%

Still remains mostly the same, going for recruitment for living well manager, we now have R&R as members of the living well design group. Primary car practitioner post
has gone out to advert.
31 March 2022



0%

AC2105 Dementia action plan to comply with GM dementia standards

31 Mach 2022



53%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2105.A

Baseline audit

30 April 2021



100%

30 September 2021



60%

AC2104.C

Review against framework

To be undertaken in Q3

Page 128

% Complete

Ongoing piece of work linked to dementia united
AC2105.B

Review against standards

Review against the GM standards and benchmarked against prime ministers action points, we have a refreshed action plan. Clear vision forward, extended the
membership of the delivery group so all relevant people are now on.

AC2105.C

Review against framework

28 February 2022

To be actioned in Q3

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 7



0%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

AC2106 Prepare the locality and all partners for the implementation of Protection of Liberty
safeguards and review against preparedness

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2106.A

Audit of stakeholder preparedness

30 April 2021



% Complete

20%

% Complete
20%

Project is currently being scoped and person identify to coordinate a programme of work to enable us to be prepared for liberty of safeguarding.
AC2106.B

Implementation plan

30 June 2021



40%

Code of Practice is still not published. Awaiting clarification of start date- expected to be postponed. Action plan recently updated but still awaiting code of practice.
31 January 2022



0%

AC2107 To work towards a new approach to the joint management (health and social care) of people
with complex issues around autism and Learning difficulties

30 September 2021



25%

Ref.

Due

Status

30 September 2021



AC2106.C

Audit and report

Page 129

Legislation start is expected to be postponed.

AC2107.A

Name
In conjunction with commissioners and Pennine care Foundation Trust build on work in 2020 to
deliver a new assessment, treatment & intervention model for this specific group of people

% Complete
25%

Consulted with LD partners – A proposal came forward but this has not been progressed as not in the best interest, a counter offer has been put forward.

AC2108 Using intelligence from the market position statement, accommodation panel create and
publish clear commissioning intentions for ASC accommodation requirements 2021-2024

31 May 2021



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 7

100%

% Complete

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Finalise neighbourhood data modelling for the care market to include RAG ratings linked to an
assessment of risk, based on quality; strategic importance of the setting and sufficiency needs.

30 April 2021



100%

Define and agree accommodation commissioning intentions aligned to ASC MPS and corporate plan

31 May 2021



100%

Mobilise new developments pathway and panel (including those to be commissioned)

31 May 2021



100%

AC2109 Develop, in partnership, a quality standard for non CQC registered accommodation with
support.

31 May 2021



100%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2109.A

Research quality standard across England, and consultation with key providers.

30 April 2021



100%

Draft quality standard and business case for implementation

31 May 2021



100%

31 March 2021



84%

AC2108.A

% Complete

Completed
AC2108.B
Completed
AC2108.C
Completed

Page 130

% Complete

Completed
AC2109.B
Completed

AC2110 Work collaboratively to understand and prepare for the introduction of a CQC assurance
framework for LA’s against Adult care duties and delivery of ASC in the context of the integration and
innovation white paper.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 7

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2110.A

Participate in the Client Level Data set(CLD) pilot and inform the national developments of the
national dashboard and assurance framework

31 March 2022



% Complete

% Complete
100%

Attendance and engagement at national and GM-wide meetings. Currently looking at the IG surrounding the legal justification for GM collating and analysing the data
on behalf of the local authorities. ICT colleagues are on standby ready to build the relevant databases once the data points have been determined by GM.
AC2110.B

Work with the care market to ensure ongoing capacity to meet national data submission
requirements including for self-funders

31 March 2022



100%

Providers currently updating as required nationally, future changes likely in Q3 and Q4- ongoing. 100% on current requirements. Expectation is further national
requirements in Q4.
AC2110.C

Lead the coordination and submission of the client level dataset pilot including reporting, data
quality and information governance requirements to enable monthly submission of NHSD

31 March 2022



65%

Page 131

No Change from Q1- Engaging the dataset, we are fully signed up as a pilot area and we are prepared. Just waiting for the DOH to engage us in starting.
Review of workforce capacity against standards and care act duties for both operations and
commissioning

30 June 2021



100%

30 September 2021



90%

30 June 2021



50%

AC2111 To define our commissioning intentions to deliver improved housing with support options for
both older and younger adults

31 March 2021



93%

Ref.

Due

Status

AC2110.D

Work has been done on Workforce capacity and will form part of the medium term financial plan.
AC2110.E

Develop a ASC medium term financial strategy

Report form is being taken to leadership expected to be end of September.
AC2110.F

Have due regard to the legislative framework for ICS’ and secure closer integration of health and
care via a MOU.

Ongoing – linked to the health and care integration work.

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 7

% Complete

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

30 June 2021



80%

Set out our Covid recovery strategy to meet the needs of older people requiring 24/7 care: Refresh
our 2020 market position statement

31 July 2021



100%

Refresh our ‘Living Well’ strategy promoting an asset based approach to community living: Refresh
our 2020 market position statement

31 July 2021



100%

AC2112 Standardise and automate our contract management functions

31 May 2021



100%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2112.A

Strengthen our approach to tactical commissioning: Build on the outcome of the 2021 pilot
programme

31 May 2021



AC2111.A

Review, personalise and improve our supported living offer: Improvement plan to reflect
aspirations, opportunities and resources

% Complete

Reviews completed, next steps to be confirmed and progressed
AC2111.B
Completed
AC2111.C

Pilot completed we are now implementing the outcome

Page 132

Pilot completed we are now implementing the outcome

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 7

% Complete
100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

CS2101 Children and young people in our Borough will aspire and achieve a better life through access
to opportunities, learning and training

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2101.A

Develop and Implement with schools the School Improvement Recovery Strategy, building on the
Interim School Improvement Strategy

30 September 2021



% Complete

40%

% Complete
60%

Primary arrangements agreed with the sector. Agreement with the secondary phase to deliver a performance conversation in addition to external School Improvement
Partner programme. Work to be completed to determine transparent arrangements for working with priority schools within secondary phase.

CS2101.B

Work closely with the system to develop the overarching Schools Strategy and vision, with related
behaviours to strengthen: The school led system and school to school support as well as school
collaboration

30 September 2021



50%

Page 133

Secondary launch of vision and values delivered in September 2021. Articulation of underpinning behaviours initiated. Work with the primary sector to be initiated.

CS2101.C

Extend and embed the Rochdale Communication and Language project through Training and
development and support and challenge through the Early Years Foundation Stage and key stages
1 and 2.

31 March 2022



40%

Training and development has continued over the summer term to extend the Communication and Language project. The final cohort of schools will begin training in the
Autumn term. Based upon internal intelligence, we will prioritise schools for additional support for the school year 2021-2022
CS2101.D

Development and implementation of a primary and key stage 3 Reading strategy

31 March 2022



30%



30%

Identification of leading practice schools and practitioners identified, identification of focus schools for improvement identified.
CS2101.E

Ensure that all secondary schools have an effective curriculum within key stage 3 and improve the
weak areas of the English baccalaureate to ensure students are better placed for key stage 4.

31 March 2022

System leader identified to lead the development work, clear expectation made to the curriculum deputies group of the work plan for the school year. Further analysis of
data to take place to determine specific foci.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

CS2101.F

Implement the recommendations of the Inclusion review in order to reduce exclusions

Due Date

Status

31 March 2022



% Complete

20%

Plan presented to the board in July. Work has been initiated on the graduated response and Ordinarily Available Provision with the council for disabled children.

CS2101.G

Strengthen the support and challenge to schools, education and training providers to improve the
percentages of young people who are in employment, education and training focussing
determinedly to improve outcomes for vulnerable young people.

31 March 2022



50%

Focus on four group embedded within service delivery. Review of referral into the Focus on Four group to take place to ensure that young people are referred in at the
right time.

Page 134

CS2102 Improve access to right service at right time

30 June 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2102.A

To work across the partnership to ensure that children in our borough receive the right service at
the earliest point of need through a partnership EHASH Strategic Management Group

30 June 2021



100%

% Complete
100%

The EHASH Strategic board continues to meet on a monthly basis and is well represented by partner agencies. We have started to clinically focus upon key themes
relating to EHASH with partner agencies in order to understand the demand and areas we need to collectively improve upon. We have started to devise partnership deep
dive audit points and hold audit meetings with key partners in order to provide a transparent overview, this then is fed back down to agencies in order to address specific
areas of findings. We are collectively considering the overall improvement of service offer and delivery across the demographic as a collective partnership. The EHASH
board will continue to assist in developing and strengthening the Front Door Model of Rochdale with partners making valuable contribution to its continued journey. As
we progress in Quarter three we have already started to consider our wider approach whereas the EHASH board will in turn focus upon partner feedback and findings in
order to improve the whole system approach.

CS2103 Develop and implement a refreshed whole family Early Help strategy that incorporates School
Readiness and aligns to the SEND Strategy and wider council prevention strategy

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 12

31 July 2021



91%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

% Complete

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2103.A

Review Early Help Systems Guide submission to identify priorities and Early Help governance at a
central and locality level

30 April 2021



100%

30 June 2021



100%

31 July 2021



75%

The system guide has been completed and priorities will inform the Early Help strategy
CS2103.B

Scope and draft the new integrated strategy with relevant governance group (including Children
with Disabilities Partnership and the Prevention Board)

Governance groups have been established with agreed TOR.
CS2103.C

Develop and implement a refreshed whole family Early Help strategy that incorporates School
Readiness and aligns to the SEND Strategy and wider council prevention strategy

Page 135

The service has had several vacancies in senior management positions which has resulted in a delay to the Early Help Strategy being written. The EH strategic lead position
has been recruited to and they will start their role on 4.10.21. Once they have been inducted in to the service and multi-agency team one of their priorities will be to write
and implement the Early Help Strategy.

CS2104 Review Early Help & Early Years locality team pathways to ensure effective transitions and
support with EHASH, locality partners and Children’s Social Care

30 June 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2104.A

Review Early Help & Early Years locality team pathways to ensure effective transitions and
support with EHASH, locality partners and Children’s Social Care

30 June 2021



100%

30 June 2021



80%

90%

% Complete

The locality team pathway has been developed and shared within the service guide
CS2104.B

Review information and advice services for multi-agency practitioners in relation to Early Help
and establish pathways with locality teams prior to EHASH

The new Locality Advisory Boards have been developed and the first meetings will be held in September '21 as planned. Information from the strategic school readiness
and FSM/Early help board will feed into the Locality Advisory Boards and Family Panels to support a multi-agency approach and accountability for supporting families at a
locality level. Now that the advisory boards have been established the family panel will be next to be rolled out and it is expected that this will be done by Dec.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

CS2105 Digitisation of Early Years communication and language assessments

31 December 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2105.A

Finalise digitisation of WellComm Assessment with GM

30 September 2021



% Complete

68%

% Complete
80%

The implementation date has slipped due to new personnel from GM taking over and leading the project. The group are meeting on a weekly basis and are currently
looking at the reporting element of the programme. The go live date is like to be delayed until Jan.

CS2105.B

Digitisation of Early Years communication and language assessments

Page 136

30 September 2021



75%

31 December 2021



50%

Once the Wellcomm app has been finalised staff will be trained to use the app. This is now likely to be Dec/Jan.
CS2105.C

Digitised assessment live and providing collated data

GM have now decided that the reporting element need to be established before the go live date. Once the reporting element of the programme has been finalised the
programme will be ready to go live in Dec/Jan.

CS2106 Establish essential parent website to support information and advice to families

28 February 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2106.A

Website established with GM and Rochdale priorities included

28 February 2022



100%

% Complete
100%

We have been working closely with GM and the ecare team to ensure that Rochdale priorities are featured in the website. Staff will be able to send families information
related to Rochdale not just generic information.
CS2106.B

Staff trained and implementing e-care prescription element of Essential parent with families

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 12

28 February 2022



100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

All children's centre staff are now trained on the e-care and are using the system to send information to families. We have had some really positive feedback from staff
regarding how easy the system is to use and how it is reducing the time they spend collating leaflets to send to parents.
28 February 2022



100%

CS2107 Implementation and embedding of the SEND (Special Educational Needs/ Disabilities) reforms

31 March 2022



82%

Ref.

Page 137

Name

Due

Status

CS2107.A

Development of the integrated SEND Alliance Offer

31 March 2022



CS2107.B

Development of a Joint SEND JSNA

CS2106.C

Website embedded in local systems including Our Rochdale

The Essential Parenting is now embedded in Our Rochdale and open to the public and practitioners.

% Complete
80%

SEND Alliance Charter and SEND Alliance Mandates have now been drafted. Away day session planned for the 14th of October to Launch Shadow SEND Alliance. SEND
Mandate to be shared with LCO in November. Revised Governance Structure agreed.

30 September 2021



95%

Complete - only missing Primary Care Transition data. Away day planned for next period where JSNA will be reviewed line by line an improvement actions agreed

CS2107.C

Collaboratively Development the Five year SEND Strategy

31 December 2021



80%



75%

Final draft is now with Communications Team - once complete it will be shared with SLT for sign off/amends. Comms plan to be developed.
CS2107.D

Development of the Preparing for Adulthood / Transition Strategy

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 12

30 November 2021

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

CS2108 Provide sufficient and suitable school places for all children within the Borough

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2108.A

Continually review the availability of primary and secondary school places and negotiate delivery
of new school places with schools and/or DfE.

31 March 2022



40%



50%

The Adulthood / Transition Strategy is due to be launched during SEND action week.

53%

% Complete

Page 138

Review underway prior to internal discussion/consultation and then reports due to be presented to Cabinet in November.
CS2108.B

Support the DfE delivery of two planned secondary Free Schools and one Free Special School
(ASC) which are required for the Borough.

31 March 2022

Middleton - Edgar Wood Academy opened on time at temporary Hopwood Hall College site. Construction underway at Bowlee site with completion planned for
September 2022. Pennines - Star Academy Trust appointed. Trust plan to self-deliver with assistance/approval from DfE. Surveys completed on site and pre-application
Planning meetings undertaken. Confirmation from DfE that September 2022 delivery is not possible it will now be 2023/24. LA is working with DfE to establish a
contingency plan for the intervening period. SEN (ASC) School - New Bridge Academy specific brief negotiated between Trust and DfE. Heads of Terms and lease
agreement agreed. DfE advise that opening date will be delayed and are anticipating 2023/34. LA will work with DfE to establish contingency for intervening period.

CS2108.C

Deliver school expansions, refurbishments and capital maintenance and repair projects across the
school estate

31 March 2022



70%

Wates construction have commenced the new Littleborough CPS. Majority of capital projects completed on time, those deferred due to contractor resource and materials
availability issues deferred to upcoming holiday periods and remedial work commissioned where necessary to keep buildings safe and comfortable in the interim.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

CS2109 Ensure that young people have access to quality evening provision to meet identified needs

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2109.A

Integration of Youth Programme Quality Intervention (YPQI) as quality and improvement
indicator to enhance offer for young people

31 March 2022



0%

CS2110 Ensure the voice of young people is promoted and listened to across service development and
within provision

31 March 2022



45%

Page 139

% Complete

0%

% Complete

Inspections planned for Q3, development plan implemented Q4.

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2110.A

Enhance the offer of Member of Youth Parliament / Children’s Champion / Cared for
Ambassadors and increase the numbers of young people participating in voice projects

31 March 2022



% Complete
40%

Cabinet young people involved in national, regional and local campaigns around climate change. Discussions with key decision makers. Involvement in interviews. The
Zone Young people reviewing carer reviews. 3 care leaver’s focus groups.

CS2110.B

Facilitate the Student Relationship Champions programme with schools and youth provision in
line with RBC Relationship Champion initiative.

31 March 2022



50%

31 March 2022



60%

Student relationship Champion Programme launched May 2021.

CS2111 Engage and support young people at risk of serious youth violence

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Status

% Complete

% Complete

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2111.A

Develop strong links between detached youth work and other areas where young people are
identified at risk of SYV

31 March 2022



50%

CS2112 Workforce stability is maintained and strengthened

31 March 2022



77%

Page 140

Due Date

Schools contacted with the view to training starting in 3 schools next quarter.

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2112.A

Continue to provide development opportunities for employees from black, Asian and minority
ethnic communities.

31 March 2022



% Complete
75%

The range of developmental opportunities continue to be delivered across the directorate and there is active engagement by children’s services in the range of council
leadership programmes, with colleagues from black and minority ethnic communities attending. There is a continuous focus on addressing cultural issues through antiracist training delivered to large cohorts of children’s services staff members on 12th July and 9th September, as part of a rolling programme across the directorate. The
council’s new black and minority ethnic network meeting launched on 26th July, was widely promoted within children’s services and the children’s services BAME focus
group has met twice with the director and assistant director during Q2 to check out whether developmental opportunities and building an inclusive culture continue to
make progress.
CS2112.B

Embed and further develop mechanisms to ensure that staff at every level in the organisation
influence strategy and practice standards.

31 March 2022



80%

Our data shows us that staff stay with Rochdale council, we are successful in attracting students who have had a placement with us to stay. However we continue to need
to rely on agency staff to fill vacancies due to the challenging market for recruitment of new staff. We have an active Recruitment and Retention group meeting and have
updated our advertising, we are increasing our intake of students and our communication with them about what is on offer in Rochdale should they choose to stay with
us for their first job. In addition we have increased our visibility with the universities.

CS2113 Ensure that children who are experiencing neglect in our borough are identified and receive
timely services to improve their lives
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 12

30 September 2021



77%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

% Complete

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2113.A

Review our approach to Neglect through the Safeguarding Partnership

31 March 2022



75%

30 September 2021



80%

CS2114 Safely stabilise the number of children in need of protection and children cared for, ensuring
children receive services through embedding innovative approaches

31 March 2022



71%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2114.A

Continue to embed the locality based social work offer alongside the development of the early
help offer

31 December 2021



Work has continued supported by Prof Jan Howarth on the development of an app for professionals to use.
CS2113.B

Develop and implement a service wide engagement strategy for young people, parents and carers

Participation Strategy is currently shared for final consultation prior to re-launch in October 21

Page 141

% Complete
80%

All high schools and 6th for college now have a practice manager linked to them - initial meetings have been set up with the Heads and Safeguarding leads and these
meetings will take place on a monthly basis to help strengthen partnership working and to provide support within this area with a view to ensuring early and targeted
intervention is in place for adolescents.

CS2114.B

Fully implement and embed No Wrong Door to safely support children edging towards care to live
successfully in the community.

31 March 2022



65%

Implementation remains ongoing but reduced staffing capacity limits the extent to which we can offer this service. However, the number of children being supported but
Our Place on an Outreach basis has increased from 34 to 38 and the proportion of those receiving Outreach Support who are on the edge of care has increased from 35%
to 50%.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 9 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

CS2114.C

Develop our Adolescent Safeguarding Offer incorporating the use of the ACT model to support
young people in need of help and protection

Due Date

Status

31 March 2022



% Complete

60%

The ACT worker has commenced work in the Pupil Referral Unit; No Wrong Door has continued to develop and strengthen its outreach work, co-produced its restorative
practice academy with care experienced young people and developed an increasing range of bespoke placements; our policy for young people who engage in Sexually
Harmful Behaviour has been revised to take account of national developments and our spending plan for programmes of work to reduce serious youth violence has been
confirmed. Work has now commenced in Q3 to write our local Adolescent Safeguarding Strategy, informed by the GM programme. The strategy will inform how different
work streams align to create a coherent approach to improving outcomes for adolescents.

CS2114.D

Complete a 2021-23 strategic youth justice partnership plan that will continue to develop a local
end to end youth justice system underpinned by child first, offender second principles &
approaches

30 September 2021



100%



50%

This has been completed and has been shared at YJ Partnership board, final draft has been sent to DCS for final sign off.

Page 142

CS2114.E

Review the use of pre-proceedings to safely reduce the number of children requiring care
applications through the family courts

31 December 2021

Senior management oversight of PP has been strengthened. HoS will agree only a max extension of 4 weeks outside of LGW. Requests for extension above this will be
heard at LGW. HoS is also now invited to mid-point review meeting with SW, PM and lawyer. Our PLO9 (LGW) report has been amended taking into account advice from
PLWG and CFLG. This will be rolled out in the next 4 weeks. There is further work to do on our current PP letters and templates - we are not ready to adopt the Essex
toolkit (until our child protection plans are compatible) but we can improve the wording and tone. There is also further work to do with the Dashboards to make the legal
data we receive more useful. We have decided to develop an excel based tracker for PP cases as a replacement to the LCS based tracker which is too basic. CJ meeting
with BP and LA about this. HoS have met to agree TOR for LGW, Perm Panel and Resources Panel, final versions will be brought to SMT in next 4 weeks.

CS2115 Secure permanence for more children, ensuring there are sufficient local placements and
choice where children need to be cared for / adopted

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2115.A

Embed our Sufficiency strategy to ensure that more children in our care live in high quality local
placements

31 March 2022



66%

% Complete
85%

Reliance in external placements has further reduced by 8 during Q2 and this includes a nett reduction of 2 residential placements in the reporting period. The total
number of children in external placements shows a nett decrease of 44 in the 2 year period from September 2019. At the same time our in-house foster placements have
increased by 33.
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 10 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

CS2115.B

Embed and deliver innovative approaches via Project fostering to continue restore in-house
fostering services to a position of growth. In particular implement: -Mocking Bird -PACE practice
model -Secure Base -Supported lodgings provision

Due Date

Status

31 March 2022



% Complete

90%

Please see Q1 re progress to that point. Mockinbird constellation is working well and better established. Se above re progress in terms of fostering service placements.

CS2115.C

Embed our revised Permanence Strategy

31 October 2021



50%

31 October 2021



40%

61%

Strategy is being revised and updated

CS2115.D

Review our support arrangements for children subject to Special Guardianship Arrangements,
Child Arrangement Orders, Adoption Orders and other permanence arrangements

Page 143

SGO policy is being revised along with CAO offers and adoption support. SGO support offer is being reviewed and revised.

CS2116 Children’s Services lead proactive relational practice within partnership arrangements

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2116.A

Implement a Contextual Safeguarding approach to understand and respond to young people’s
experiences of significant harm beyond their families.

31 March 2022



% Complete
65%

As Q1 this is ongoing - a meeting is to be arranged to relook at the initial plan and current concerns in the area given it was due to be implemented prior to covid - the
plan will be reviewed to consider current concerns. A further area in Rochdale has been identified where there is anti-social behaviour concerns and a multi-agency
response is being implemented therefore the response to contextual safeguarding is being expanded outside the initial identified area.

CS2116.B

Develop a Strengths based approach to child protection conferences

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 11 Of 12

31 March 2022



80%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

Training and development sessions arranged and held with IRO's and CP Chairs. Full programme of events for partners is arranged and scheduled. Focus group arranged
and due to be held in September 21 with key partners. New paperwork reviewed with CsC and agreed at SMT. Re decoration of conference rooms scheduled and
arranged Sept 21. RSCP website updated in readiness. Young people’s focus group ongoing re voices of the child and participation.

CS2116.C

Develop pathway for 16/17 year olds presenting as homelessness and in need of accommodation

31 December 2021



50%

Ongoing with strategic housing. Meeting in September agreed for housing colleagues to draft an options paper re care alternative provision for this age group. Work has
also begun on developing proposals for a "National House Project" workstream in conjunction with GMCA.
CS2116.D

Develop accommodation options for young people presenting as homeless

31 December 2021



50%

Page 144

Ongoing with strategic housing. Meeting in September agreed for housing colleagues to draft an options paper re care alternative provision for this age group. Work has
also begun on developing proposals for a "National House Project" workstream in conjunction with GMCA.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 12 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

PH2101 Refresh Locality Plan to reflect impact of COVID and emerging new priorities

30 September 2021




Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2101.A

Establish governance arrangements for development and ownership of the plan, within the
shadow arrangements of new locality construct.

30 April 2021



100%

30 September 2021



100%

PH2102 Develop Intelligence Network to support strategic and tactical intelligence requirements
within new system architecture

31 December 2021



43%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2102.A

Describe structure, purpose and function of the intelligence network, signed off by partners
across the system.

30 June 2021



100%

% Complete

Will be owned by system board.

PH2101.B

Lead on collaborative development of refreshed Locality Plan

Completed and signed off.

Page 145

% Complete
50%

The role of Senior Intelligence lead has been recruited to and the new appointee will start in Q3. A reorganisation of the intelligence function is taking place and a paper
is being developed to advocate for more 'investigation space' to be in the system.

PH2102.B

Bring together network, agree ways of working and develop work plan aligned with priorities.

30 September 2021



50%

Meetings are taking place between Public Health and LCO to formulate best practice and to agree how to move forward. The network will follow existing LCO structures
and will initially focus on the development of Mandate Dashboards and programme plans.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 11

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2102.C

Begin working against work plan, completing at least one piece of joint working.

Due Date

Status

% Complete

30 September 2021



50%



25%

Through the work LCO to develop the potential of dashboards and programme plans, this will enhance the intelligence capacity within HMR.
PH2102.D

Reflect on processes, refine approaches, and share learning.

31 December 2021

The need for capacity in the system to carry out Deep Dives and investigative work will be created by the reorganisation of the Intelligence team.

PH2103 Work collaboratively to understand and prepare for Public Health in the context of the
Integration and Innovation, and Public Health Proposals expected in due course

30 June 2021



Page 146

45%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

% Complete

PH2103.A

Have due regard to the local changes to system architecture, and define where and how the
service needs to connect to the wider system to influence local policy and decision making

30 June 2021



50%

30 June 2021



40%

Ongoing programme of work linked closely to Health and Social Care integration and wider system recovery.

PH2103.B

Review and update MOU with LCO, ensuring collaborative leadership at locality level with a key
focus on improving population health

Commenced work programme regarding prevention, inequalities, review of intelligence and cancer screening early diagnosis plan. Further work required regarding
ongoing Public Health support for LCO.

PH2104 Lead on the development and implementation of a system wide all-age prevention strategy

31 March 2022



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 11

80%

% Complete

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2104.A

Co-design the vision, narrative and goals with key stakeholders across the system recognising the
impact and leaning of COVID-19 on our prevention priorities. Secure strategy sign-off.

Due Date

Status

% Complete

30 September 2021



75%

31 March 2022



90%

Ongoing stakeholder engagement, all papers produced, sign-off arranged for October via LCO, Leadership and ICB.

PH2104.B

Prevention and Neighbourhood Project Board to oversee Implementation across the system

Progressing through governance sign off process. Prevention and Neighbourhood Board continuing to meet monthly and overseeing strategy and work stream progress.

PH2104.C

Undertake a Rapid Health Needs Assessment (specifically focused on mental wellbeing, physical
activity, tobacco, obesity, healthy eating, drugs and alcohol, oral health) to inform the health
improvement commission

Page 147

30 April 2021



100%

31 March 2022



50%

Develop revised service specification

30 June 2021



100%

Procure agreed service specification and award contract

31 October 2021



50%

Lifestyle HNA complete. Recommendations informing the health improvement commission and prevention strategy

PH2104.D

Develop system wide procurement/development plans including the 2021/22 public health
improvement prevention commission

Specialist health improvement service tender was issued at the end of September. Now in evaluation stage.

PH2104.E

Complete.

PH2104.F

In progress.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 11

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

30 September 2021



75%

31 March 2022



100%

PH2105 LCO Population Health Management Projects

31 March 2022



37%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2105.A

Identify and deliver programmes of work using population health management to tackle three
priority health areas - Develop work plan, informed by intelligence and in conjunction with LCO
partners, identifying priority health needs

30 April 2021



40%

31 March 2022



35%



75%

PH2104.G

Design and implement an agreed and integrated model of social prescribing / good help network

% Complete

Implementation continues initially with 2 PCNs and the contact centre.

PH2104.H

Assess progress, achievements and update strategy implementation plan

A draft strategy has been developed based on progress made in 20/21.

Page 148

% Complete

Work plan in progress focusing on cancer, CVD and neighbourhoods.

PH2105.B

Identify and deliver programmes of work using population health management to tackle three
priority health areas - Deliver against agreed priorities, incorporating components of a population
health management approach.

Incorporated prevention strategy into programme of work with public health systems characteristics review to be conducted later in year.

PH2106 Wider Determinants As we move from the pandemic response, we need to address the impact
on the wider determinants of health.
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 11

31 March 2022

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

% Complete

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2106.A

Develop work plan, informed by intelligence and in conjunction with Local Authority partners, and
the Economic Support Network, to identify priority areas of work

31 May 2021



100%

31 March 2022



50%

PH2107 Deliver neighbourhood focussed programme of work, focussing on addressing an element
within wider determinants of health. Linked to broader LCO neighbourhoods ‘Test of Concept’
programme of work.

31 March 2022



8%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2107.A

Decide on priority focus, informed by Rapid Health Needs Assessment, and identify key partners
to form project group. Describe project plan and key milestones.

30 June 2021



25%

30 September 2021



0%

31 March 2022



0%

Priority lead and areas identified

PH2106.B

Deliver against agreed priorities, incorporating programmes of work including Community Wealth
Building, Housing, Finance and Work and Skills.

Programmes being delivered with work and skills, housing and voluntary sector partners.

Page 149

% Complete

Discussions with LCO regarding neighbourhood focused programme of work being determined.

PH2107.B

Begin delivery phase of project, incorporating ongoing monitoring and evaluation. Share learning
across other ‘Test of Concept’ programmes

Not yet commenced

PH2107.C

Complete evaluation of programme to inform wider roll-out of concept, focussing on additional
areas and priorities.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 11

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

PH2108 ‘Re-entry not response’

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2108.A

Develop a programme for our most vulnerable to address deconditioning and mental wellbeing.

01 May 2021



100%

31 March 2022



50%

PH2109 Recommission the Sexual Health Service to ensure improved access to services and alignment
to GM vision

31 March 2022



72%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2109.A

Conduct soft market testing with providers to inform the market of the forthcoming opportunity
and to understand the market appetite for the service.

30 April 2021



100%

Develop service specification with developmental requirements clearly outlined; consider learning
30 April 2021
from Covid-19.



100%

Not yet commenced

75%

% Complete

Programme designed, agreed and funding allocated

Page 150

PH2108.B

Deliver against programme plan, aligned to roadmap out of lockdown

Delivery of the 7 programmes underway, evaluation framework agreed.

% Complete

Complete

PH2109.B

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 11

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

30 November 2021



90%

31 March 2022



0%

PH2110 Finalise the partnership agreement between RBC and the Link4Life

31 October 2021



78%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2110.A

Review previous work completed in light of the L4L covid recovery plan and amend to reflect
developments in L4L operations.

30 June 2021



100%

30 September 2021



85%



50%

Complete

PH2109.C

Procure agreed service specification and award contract

Interviews took place on 8th October 2021. Post tender award report currently being written.

PH2109.D

New service to commence

Due to commence 1/4/2022

Page 151

% Complete

Review complete, update report submitted to Cabinet July 2021. Complete.

PH2110.B

Finalise the Link4Life outcomes framework

Ongoing discussions between Public Health commissioning and Your Trust to finalise framework in light of recovery focus.

PH2110.C

Finalise and sign off the partnership agreement as a legal document

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 11

31 October 2021

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

Legal and estates are progressing with finalising the legal document. Public Health commissioning are progressing with procurement exemption and VEAT notice.

PH2111 Ensure the allocation and use of additional funding received to support public health
outcomes is in line with legal and governance requirements

31 October 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2111.A

Allocation of the Contain Outbreak Management Fund 2021/22 finalised and approved by Cabinet

30 June 2021



100%

Determine use of additional drug misuse and obesity funding allocation and put in place relevant
contract procedures if applicable.

30 June 2021



75%

87%

% Complete

Page 152

Complete

PH2111.B

Paper approved at Integrated Commissioning Board to enable contract variations to be put in place for the additional functions funded by grant funding. Contract
variations now being progressed and implementation of programmes has commenced.

PH2111.C

Support Community Safety with the allocation of the ‘new burdens’ domestic abuse funding

30 June 2021



100%



75%

Spending plan in place for new burdens funding. Contract extensions for domestic abuse services approved in Q1 by ICB

PH2111.D

Ensure exit strategies are in place for all non-recurrent grant funding.

31 October 2021

Planning for 2022/23 use of covid related grant funding is underway and will help inform exit strategies for non-recurrent funding if applicable.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 11

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

PH2112 To provide assurance on the effective implementation of the Covid-19 Vaccination Programme
and reduce any health inequalities

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2112.A

As SRO Ensure good programme management of the vaccination programme with regular reports
to Vaccine Assurance Group, Health Protection Board and Gold Control as needed

31 March 2022



% Complete

64%

% Complete
50%

Inequalities continue to be a challenge across all elements of programme. An intensive programme of work is underway to work to address this.

PH2112.B

Cohort 1-9 invited for first doses

30 April 2021



100%

31 July 2021



100%

30 April 2021



100%

Page 153

All cohorts have been invited for first doses

PH2112.C

Cohort 10 are invited for first dose

All cohorts have been invited for first doses.

PH2112.D

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (1st)

The plan was last updated on 30 July 21 with input from the group members. The group meets fortnightly. All leads for target groups have been identified and regularly
contacted for vaccination uptake updates.

PH2112.E

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (2nd)

31 July 2021



100%

The plan was last updated in September with input from the group members. The group continues to meet fortnightly. A new Public Health Outbreak Officer now
supports and leads on delivery of the plan. Dedicated task and finish groups have been set up to deliver targeted work to reduce inequalities.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 9 Of 11

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

30 October 2021



0%

31 January 2021



0%

PH2113 Provide oversight and delivery where required, of COVID testing programme across the
borough

30 June 2021



75%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2113.A

Deliver phase 2 of Community Testing programme, continuously improving and adapting as
required (April to June).

30 June 2021



PH2112.F

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (3rd)

% Complete

Not yet commenced.
PH2112.G

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (4th)

Not yet commenced.

Page 154

% Complete
75%

Community testing is currently continuing until the end of December albeit operating hours and number of staff have been reduced to ensure that costs are kept within
the DHSC rate card.

PH2113.B

Develop plan for ongoing sustainable model of community testing for post June ’21, ensuring
emerging needs surrounding COVID continue to be met.

30 June 2021



75%

3 month plan Oct-Dec has been agreed and is in operation. We await further info from DHSC about testing post December but it is likely that an exit strategy will begin
during Dec until end Mar 22.

PH2114 Deliver enhanced contact tracing model

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

30 June 2021

Page 10 Of 11



90%

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

% Complete

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2114.A

Develop detailed plan and ensure appropriate resource in place to deliver enhanced model of
contact tracing, focussing on priority groups, continuously improving and adapting as required

30 June 2021



90%

A local enhanced contact tracing model has been implemented that delivers Tier 1 and Tier 2 contact tracing service. The launch of new interactive contact tracing
service has been postponed until September. The new service is an essential aspect of the enhanced model and the delay has pushed forward the implementation of
some key elements within our service.

PH2115 Develop and implement enhanced isolation support offer

30 September 2021



Page 155

100%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

% Complete

PH2115.A

Develop enhanced isolation support offer for the borough, incorporating national and GM
programmes of work and ensuring they are sufficient and appropriate for our residents

30 April 2021



100%

30 September 2021



100%

GM and national isolation support offer established with ongoing review and development against roadmap

PH2115.B

Implement and monitor enhanced offer

Offer monitored and complete.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 11 Of 11

